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Preface

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts

The basic purpose of the Standing Committee on Public Accounts is to ensure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in public spending. The committee's authority is
derived from Standing Order 45(3) of the Standing Orders of the Yukon Legislative
Assembly, which says

At the commencement of the first Session of each Legislature a Standing
Committee on Public Accounts shall be appointed and the Public Accounts and
all Reports of the Auditor General shall stand referred automatically and
permanently to the said Committee as they become available.

On January 12, 2017, the Yukon Legislative Assembly adopted the following motion:

THAT Stacey Hassard, Paclo Gallina, Ted Adel, Don Hutton, Wade Istchenko
and Liz Hanson be appointed to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts
established pursuant to Standing Order 45(3),

THAT the Committee have the power to call for persons, papers and records and
to sit during intersessional periods; and

THAT the Clerk of the Legislative Assembly be responsible for providing the
necessary support services to the Committee. (Motion No. 6)

The committee first met on March 1, 2017. At that meeting, the committee elected
Stacey Hassard as Chair and Paolo Gallina as Vice-Chair.

This report

On March 6, 2017, Michael Ferguson, CPA, CA, FCA, Auditor General of Canada,
released Report of the Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly -
2017: Government Transfers to Societies - Yukon. The report was presented to the
Hon. Nils Clarke, the Speaker of the Yukon Legislative Assembly, that morning. The
Speaker then authorized its distribution to Members of the Legislative Assembly. Once
members had received their copies the report was posted to the website of the Auditor
General of Canada. At that point the report became a public document.

On the same day Members of the Yukon Legislative Assembly had the opportunity to
ask questions of the Auditor General at an in-camera briefing in the Legislative
Assembly chamber.

The Public Accounts committee of the 34" Legislative Assembly first discussed the
Auditor General's report at a meeting held on March 6, 2017. At this meeting the
committee adopted the following motion:
AGREED, on motion of Mr. Adel, seconded by Ms. Hanson,
“THAT the Standing Committee on Public Accounts hold public hearings on the
performance audit reports presented (Report of the Auditor General of Canada to
the Yukon Legislative Assembly - 2017: Government Transfers to Societies — Yukon,



and Report of the Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly -
2017: Capital Asset Management — Yukon), on dates to be determined by the
committee in consultation with the Office of the Auditor General.”

At its meeting on April 3, 2017, the committee adopted the following motion:
AGREED, on motion of Mr. Adel, seconded by Mr. Hutton,
“THAT the Standing Committee on Public Accounts hold public hearings on
Wednesday, June 28, 2017 (on the report on government transfers to societies) and
Thursday, June 29, 2017 (on the report on capital asset management)”.

In preparation for the public hearing the committee also held meetings on June 2, 14
and 28, 2017. At these meetings members discussed the Auditor General's report, and
drafted questions which were distributed amongst the committee members.

Prior to the public hearing, the Department of Community Services, the Department of
Economic Development, the Department of Energy, Mines and Resources, the
Department of Finance and the Executive Council Office each provided the committee
with a status report to update the committee on progress made since the release of the
Auditor General's report. The documents provided by the departments are appended to
this report.

The public hearing took place on Wednesday, June 28, 2017. Witnesses appeared in
two panels, with officials from the Department of Community Services, the Department
of Economic Development, and the Department of Energy, Mines and Resources
appearing in the morning and officials from the Department of Finance and the
Executive Council Office appearing in a second panel that afternoon. The transcripts of
the hearing are appended to this report.

Committee member Wade Istchenko was not available to participate in the public
hearing. Brad Cathers served as his substitute for the hearing and related meetings.

Following the public hearing, the committee held meetings June 29, July 11 and
August 2, 2017 to prepare its first report.

The Auditor General's report, transcripts of the public hearing and this report may be
found on the committee’s web page at:
http://iwww.legassembly.gov.yk.ca/committees/pac.html

The committee would like to thank officials from the Office of the Auditor General of
Canada for their assistance in preparing the committee for the hearings and in assisting
in the preparation of this report.

The committee would also like to thank the officials from the Department of Community
Services, the Department of Economic Development, the Department of Energy, Mines
and Resources, the Department of Finance and the Executive Council Office, who
appeared as witnesses at the public hearing and provided additional information after
the public hearing.
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Introduction

1 On March 6, 2017 Michael Ferguson, CPA, CA, FCA, the Auditor General of
Canada (the Auditor General), issued an audit report entitled, Report of the Auditor
General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly - 2017: Government Transfers to
Societies - Yukon. In conducting the audit the Auditor General

... focused on whether selected departments adequately managed a sample of
government transfers to societies according to key legislative, policy, and
administrative requirements. The three departments [the Office of the Auditor
General] selected were the Department of Community Services; the Department
of Economic Development; and the Department of Energy, Mines and
Resources. Among the items [the Office of the Auditor General] examined were
whether the departments conducted risk assessments, whether they measured
the results of government transfers, and whether they confirmed that societies
were free of outstanding debts to the government and in compliance with legal
reporting requirements. In addition, [the Office of the Auditor General] looked at
the monitoring and coordination roles, and related responsibilities, of the
Department of Finance and the Executive Council Office.!

2. The Auditor General summarized his conclusions as follows:

» Overall, we found inconsistencies in the policies and practices related to
government transfers. We found that the policies contained contradictions and
undefined concepts, and that departments did not always document the risks
associated with government transfers or verify that societies that received
transfers complied with their legal reporting requirements. We also found that
departments had not fully implemented a results-based approach.

» These findings are important because the consistent application of policy helps
departments be more accountable and promotes the equitable treatment of
societies. By using systems and practices that support good management of

! Auditor General of Canada, Report of the Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly
- 2017: Government Transfers fo Societies - Yukon, March 2017, paragraph 10.



government transfers, the government can better assist societies that provide
programs and services to Yukon citizens.?

3. The Auditor General's report made five recommendations. The departments
agreed with all the recommendations.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts

4. The Standing Committee on Public Accounts of the Yukon Legislative Assembly
is established by Standing Order 45(3) of the Standing Orders of the Yukon Legislative
Assembly. This Standing Order says that: “At the commencement of the first Session of
each Legislature a Standing Committee on Public Accounts shall be appointed and the
Public Accounts and all Reports of the Auditor General shall stand referred
automatically and permanently to the said committee as they become available.”

5. On January 12, 2017, the Yukon Legislative Assembly adopted Motion No. 6,
which established the current Public Accounts Committee. In addition to appointing
members to the committee, the motion stipulated that the committee shall “have the
power to call for persons, papers and records and to sit during intersessional periods.”

6. in his opening remarks at the public hearing, the Chair described the committee’s
role in the audit process:

“The Public Accounts Committee is an all-party committee with a mandate to
ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in public spending — in other
words, accountability for the use of public funds. The purpose of this public
hearing is to address issues of the implementation of policies and whether
programs are being effectively and efficiently delivered, and not to question the
policies of the Government of Yukon. In other words, our task is not to challenge
government policy, but fo examine its implementation.”

7. The committee accepts and endorses the recommendations made by the Auditor
General. The committee’s report will not repeat in detail information contained in the
Auditor General's report. Neither will this report attempt to summarize all the evidence
given before the commitiee at its public hearing, held June 28, 2017. The transcript of
the public hearing is appended to this report. Instead, this report will focus on those
issues that — in the opinion of the committee — merit further comment.

8. The committee is encouraged by the departments' responses to the Auditor
General's observations and their acceptance of the report's recommendations. Based
on the written responses to the recommendations, and the evidence provided by
witnesses during the public hearings, the committee believes that the departments have
seriously considered the Auditor General's recommendations. In some cases actions to
deal with the problems identified in the report have already been taken since the release

2 Auditor General of Canada, Report of the Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly
- 2017: Govemment Transfers to Societies - Yukon, March 2017, paragraphs 14-15.

3 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Orders of the Yukon Legislative Assembly (October 30, 2012),
page 24.

4 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-1.



of the Auditor General's report. Action continues to be taken to implement the
recommendations identified in the report.

9. Nonetheless, the committee believes that certain issues merit further comment.

Silo mentality

10. The committee observed that in response to the Auditor General's
recommendations, the departments independently developed new forms and processes
to resolve the issues identified in the report.

11.  While the committee is encouraged by what Pamela Muir, Acting Deputy Minister
of the Executive Council, described as "a new collaborative relationship between ECO
and the Department of Finance"s, there is an opportunity for the departments to further
collaborate and standardize systems.

12.  Justin Ferby, Deputy Minister of the Department of Economic Development,
noted during the hearing:

| think further work obviously should be done in concert with us implementing the
recommendations from the audit to spend some time to look at our different risk
assessments, realizing that standardization is useful. In fact, that's one of the
recommendations in the audit and that's something we'll definitely put on the
work plan to discuss further across the deputy minister table and with colleagues
here to ensure that, if some of us have some strong examples of how we're
doing it, we can share, and vice versa.b

13. Stephen Mills, Deputy Minister of the Department of Energy, Mines and
Resources, also stated:

Without a doubt, | think it is worthwhile looking at some of these matrices with the
other departments to try to find ways to come up with a more effective decision
matrix and also signal what a decision of high risk means when it comes to how
you design the funding structure over a year or how that links to the response of
additional reporting that might be required.”

14. Recommendation No. 1: THAT the departments collaborate in order to
standardize systems across the public service; and THAT the departments report to the
Standing Committee on Public Accounts what steps have been taken by April 1, 2018.

Corporate evaluation policy

15.  The Auditor General's report found that the departments did not fully implement a
results-based approach and “the Executive Council Office had not developed a
corporate evaluation policy to allow depariments fo measure results at the program

5 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-16
8 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-12.
7 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 2B, 2017, page 1-13.



level."® During the public hearing, the Auditor General noted that “An evaluation policy
would help departments measure, evaluate and report on performance.”®

16.

17.

Ms. Muir stated at the hearing:

While ECO certainly supports the concept of evaluation and work has been
undertaken on a corporate policy, that policy was never established, for various
reasons including capacity and resources...

ECO and Finance have determined that the policy guidance for evaluating
government transfers should reside with Finance. Officials will recommend that
the government transfers policy be amended to include this. It is expected that
this work will be undertaken over the next year or so with a target of finalizing a
policy in the fall of 2018 with implementation and training to follow. 1

The committee is concerned by the length of this timeline and apprehensive that

the departments may not be properly prioritizing this issue. In response to the Auditor
General's report recommendation that a corporate evaluation policy should be created,
the Executive Council Office responded "We anticipate that this initiative will be
completed by November 2018, subject to how it is prioritized in relation to other
initiatives.”11

18.

Katherine White, Deputy Minister of the Department of Finance, noted during the

public hearing:

19.

One of the reasons that it takes so long is that it does take a little bit longer to
develop a robust policy and test it than it does to do the initial phases of the work
plan that we have indicated.

...the evaluation policy is rather complex because we are dealing with everything
from hosting an event to maybe providing counselling services to folks. The other
major project that we have happening in the Department of Finance is the
reorganization that will address some of the concerns that have been identified.
One of the reasons for the timing delay is also to build and gain support for that
reorganization and to ensure government was on board with that plan moving
forward. 12

Recommendation No. 2: THAT the creation and implementation of a corporate

evaluation policy be prioritized and completed by November 1, 2018.

B Auditor General of Canada, Report of the Auditor General of Canada fo the Yukon Legislative Assembly
- 2017: Government Transfers to Societies - Yukon, March 2017, paragraph 75.

¥ Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-2.

10 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-16.

11 Auditor General of Canada, Report of the Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legisiative
Assembly - 2017: Government Transfers to Societies - Yukon, March 2017, paragraph 84.

12 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-21.



Dividing policies

20. The committee observed that there are multiple types of funding agreements
covered under government transfers to societies. There are ongoing annual funding
agreements to societies, agreements that are frequently repeated but not an ongoing
service delivery, and also one-time transfers to societies. The commitiee is concerned
that a single policy may not serve all three categories of transfers effectively.

21,  Ms. White stated at the public hearing:

You have articulated the challenge in having a corporate policy that applies to
small, medium, large and everything in between quite well. We don't envision
having departments use standard performance indicators or standard policy as a
one-size-fits-all solution.

We hadn’t broken it down in exactly the way that has been identified, but
certainly the complexity of the transfer payment agreement, which is | think what
you were alluding to, with the three categories is something that we will consider
in developing that policy and providing additional guidance to departments,
because it is not our intention to add more bureaucratic paperwork to ourselves,
to our partners in departments or to the societies to benefit from funding and, in
turn, provide services or other activities for Yukoners at large. '3

22. Recommendation No. 3: THAT the departiments consider creating separate
policies for different categories of transfer payment agreements.

Endorsing risk assessments as a tool to better support societies

23. The committee is encouraged by the progress the departments have made in
addressing the Auditor General's recommendations regarding risk assessments. The
Department of Community Services, the Department of Economic Development, and
the Department of Energy Mines and Resources have each committed to “more
methodically apply a risk-based approach that is consistent with the 2008 Government
Transfers Policy in the Financial Administration Manual.” 14

24. The Auditor General noted during the public hearing that “Effective risk
management helps departments know where to focus their attention.”'®> The committee
urges the departments to incorporate risk assessments as an instrument to better
support societies.

25.  During the hearing, Mr. Ferbey stated:

When you start going through the risk matrix and you start looking up, for
example, project risk, the kind of dialogues that come up deepen our
understanding of what the client is trying to achieve.

13 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-21.

4 Auditor General of Canada, Report of the Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative
Assembly - 2017: Government Transfers o Societies - Yukon, March 2017, paragraph 62.

'3 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-2.



...going through the risk assessment allows us to comport ourselves to organize
ourselves internally to potentially help clients.

...the actual risk matrix has improved our efficiencies — really understanding
what the clients are trying to achieve and how we can assist in non-financial
ways, in addition to if they are seeking financial resources.

26. Recommendation No. 4: THAT the departments embrace risk assessments as
a tool to help identify weaknesses in projects and better support societies; and THAT
the departments report to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts what progress
has been made by November 1, 2018.

Responsibilities on societies

27. The Auditor General's report did not examine the burdens placed on societies
during the government transfer process, however following the testimony during its
public hearing, the committee believes this issue warrants further investigation.

28. Committee members asked witnesses “whether there can be some reduction in
the volume of paperwork being placed on those receiving the funding and the amount of
staff time within Yukon government that is taken up in ensuring these accountability
requirements are met?”1?

29.  Paul Moore, Deputy Minister of Community Services, noted:

We are well aware that it can be potentially very time-consuming, especially for
some of our smaller organizations.'®

30. The committee observed that the departments appear to be placing some
responsibilities on societies that could properly be handled by the public service. For
example, “With respect to outstanding debt, transfer payment agreements must have
the standard clause from the agreement's template that requires recipients to
acknowledge any outstanding debt [to the Yukon government]."'® The government
would appear to be better suited to attesting whether or not a society is indebted to it.

31. Recommendation No. 5: THAT the departments make efforts to reduce the
burdens placed on societies receiving government transfers; and THAT the
departments report to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts what steps have
been taken by April 1, 2018. -

Conclusion

32. The committee would like to thank officials from the Office of the Auditor General
of Canada for their work in compiling the report and for the assistance offered to the
committee in preparation for the public hearing.

18 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-13.

17 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-13.

18 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-7.

8 Yukon Legislative Assembly, Standing Committee on Public Accounts, Public Proceedings: Evidence,
June 28, 2017, page 1-4.



33. The committee would also like to thank the departments for agreeing with, and
committing to implement the recommendations in the Auditor General's report.

34.  Further, the committee would like to thank the witnesses from the Department of
Community Services, the Department of Economic Development, the Department of
Energy, Mines and Resources, the Department of Finance and the Executive Councit
Office who appeared before the committee at the public hearing held on June 28, 2017
and the officials who prepared the written responses submitted to the committee.

35. Finally, the Public Accounts Committee wishes to note that the committee will
follow up on the implementation of the recommendations contained in this report and in
the Auditor General's report. This follow-up will include a review by the committee in
April of 2018 and may alse include holding further public hearings.



Summary of Public Accounts Committee Recommendations

Recommendation No. 1: THAT the departments collaborate in order to standardize
systems across the public service; and THAT the departments report to the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts what steps have been taken by April 1, 2018.

Recommendation No. 2: THAT the creation and implementation of a corporate
evaluation policy be prioritized and completed by November 1, 2018.

Recommendation No. 3: THAT the departments consider creating separate policies for
different categories of transfer payment agreements.

Recommendation No. 4;: THAT the departiments embrace risk assessments as a tool
to help identify weaknesses in projects and better support societies; and THAT the
departments report to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts what progress has
been made by November 1, 2018.

Recommendation No. 5: THAT the departments make efforts to reduce the burdens
placed on societies receiving government transfers; and THAT the departments report
to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts what steps have been taken by April 1,
2018.



Appendices

Transcripts of public hearing June 28, 2017

Documents provided by the departments:
» Department of Community Services
o Status report (June 12, 2017)
Department of Economic Development
o Status report (May 25, 2017)
Department of Energy Mines and Resources
o Response to the report of the Auditor General of Canada (June 5, 2017)

Department of Finance and Executive Council Office
o Status update and workplan (June 12, 2017)
Executive Council Office

o Memorandum re: 2007 internal audit and 2010 follow-up report
{August 3, 2017)
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 1-1

EVIDENCE
Whitchorse, Yukon
Wednesday, June 28, 2017

Chair (Mr. Hassard): | will now call to order this
hearing of the Standing Committee on Public Accounts of the
Yukon Legislative Assembly.

The Public Accounts Commitiee is established by
Standing Order 45(3) of the Standing Orders of the Yukon
Legislative Assembly. This Standing Order says: “At the
commencement of the first Session of each Legislature a
Standing Commitiee on Public Accounts shall be appointed
and the Public Accounts and all Reports of the Auditor
General shall stand referred automatically and permanently to
the said Committee as they become available.”

On January 12, 2017, the Yukon Legislative Assembly
adopted Motion No. 6 which established the current Public
Accounts Committee. In addition to appointing members to
the Committee, the motion stipulated that the Committee shall
“have the power to call for persons, papers and records and to
sit during intersessional periods.”

Today, pursuant to Standing Order 45(3) and Motion
No. 6, the Committee will investigate the Auditor General of
Canada’s report, entitled Report of the Auditor General of
Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly 2017
Government Transfers to Societies — Yukon.

As this report deals with multiple departments, we will
have two panels of witnesses appearing today. [ would like to
thank the witnesses from the depariments of Community
Services, Energy, Mines and Resources, as well as Economic
Development, for appearing this morning. 1 believe that the
deputy ministers will introduce their witnesses during their
opening remarks. Also present with us today from the Office
of the Auditor General of Canada are: Michael Ferguson, the
Auditor General of Canada, and, with him, Casey Thomas,
principal.

I will now introduce the members of the Public Accounts
Committee. | am Stacey Hassard, the Chair of the Committee
as well as Member of the Legislative Assembly for Pelly-
Nisutlin.

To my left is Paolo Gallina, who is the Commiittee’s
Vice-Chair and the Member for Porter Creek Creek Cenire.
To his left is Liz Hanson, Member for Whitehorse Centre. To
her lefi is Ted Adel, Member for Copperbelt North, and to his
left is Brad Cathers, Member for Lake Laberge, who is
substituting during this procession for the Member for Kluane,
Wade Isichenko. Behind me is Don Hutton, Member for
Mayo-Tatchun.

The Public Accounts Committee is an all-party committee
with a mandate to ensure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in public spending — in other words,
accountability for the use of public funds.

The purpose of this public hearing is to address issues of
the implementation of policies and whether programs are
being effectively and efficiently delivered, and not to question
the policies of the Government of Yukon. In other words, our

task is not to challenge government policy, but to examine its
implementation.

The results of our deliberations will be reported back to
the Legislative Assembly. To begin the proceedings,
Mr. Ferguson will give an opening statement summarizing the
findings in the Auditor General’s report. The deputy ministers
will then be invited to make opening statements on behalf of
their departments. Committee members will then ask
questions. As is the Committee's practice, the members devise
and compile the questions collectively, then divide them up
among the membets. The questions that each member will ask
are not their personal questions on a particufar subject, but
those of the entire Commiltee.

This morning’s panel will be from 10:00 until noon. We
will then recess until 1:30, when the public hearing will
resume with a new panel of witnesses from the Executive
Council Office and the Department of Finance.

After the hearing, the Committee will prepare a report of
its proceedings, including any recommendations that the
Committee wishes to make. This report will be tabled in the
Legislative Assembly.

Before we start the hearing, 1 would ask that questions
and answers be kept brief and to the point so that we may deal
with as many issues as possible in the time allotted for this
hearing. | would also ask that Committee members, witnesses
and officials from the Office of the Auditor General wait until
they are recognized by the Chair before speaking. This will
keep the discussion more orderly and allow those listening on
the radio or over the Internet to know who is speaking.

We will proceed now with Mr. Ferguson’s opening
statement.

Mr. Ferguson: | am pleased to be in Whitchorse today
to discuss a report on government transfers to societies in
Yukon. This report was tabled on March 6 of this year in the
Yukon Legislative Assembly. Joining me today is Casey
Thomas, the principal responsible for the audit.

This audit focused on whether selected departments
managed a sample of government transfers to societies
according to key legislative policy and administrative
requirements. The government uses transfers to socicties to
fund a wide range of services and programs for Yukon
citizens in areas such as mental health, athletics and
community facilities. In the 2014-15 fiscal year, the
government provided about $40 million to about 300 of the
730 active societies registered in Yukon.

When transferring funds to societies, departments must
follow two policies; however, we found that the two policies
failed to define some basic concepts and contained some
contradictions. In our opinion, this could result in inconsistent
funding decisions and the inequitable treatment of societies
that request funding.

For example, although both policies allow the
government to provide operational funds to societies, the
activities that qualify for funding are different under each
policy. One policy allows operational funds to pay for
expenses such as rent or employee salaries, and the other
doesn’t.
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We also found that departments didn’t always comply
with the requirements of the policies for providing
government funds to societies, including instances where
departments should have issued contracts for services instead
of providing government transfers. These arrangements are
subject to different requirements to maintain fairmess and
accountability for public funds. For example, when the
government receives goods or services in return for resources,
it must classify the agreement as a goods and services contract
rather than as a government transfer. In eight of the 53
transfers that we looked at, the government received a direct
benefit from the funding it provided to societies. For example,
one society received $5,000 to install signs and perform
maintenance on government-owned swimming pools.

Effective risk management helps departments know
where to focus their attention. We found that for about 60
percent of the transfers we looked at, departmental officials
had not documented the risk assessments. The government
provides transfers to societies to help them reach specific
goals. It’s important for departments to know whether the
money was spent to help reach these goals. We found that the
Department of Economic Development and the Department of
Energy, Mines and Resources assessed whether societies had
reached their intended goals. The Department of Community
Services didn’t always do so.

An evaluation policy would help departments measure,
evaluate and report on performance. However, we found that
the Executive Council Office had not developed a corporate
evaluation policy.

Addressing the issues raised in our audit will allow the
government to improve its management of government
transfers to societies that support services and programs for
the citizens of Yukon. Mr. Chair, this concludes my opening
statement. We would be happy to answer any questions the
committee may have.

Mr. Moore: Good morning, Mr. Chair and members of
the Committee. My name is Paul Moore and ['m the deputy
minister of the Department of Community Services. With me
here this morning is Mr. Philippe Mollet, who is currently the
acting director of Finance for our department.

Thank you very much for inviting me here today to
provide an update on the progress that the Department of
Community Services is making on the March 2017 report of
the Auditor General of Canada on government transfers to
societies. We will get into more details, and we are very
pleased to report to you today that our department has met its
commitments and addressed the recommendations contained
in the report.

I would like to begin this moming by giving you a very
high-level overview of the department’s programs and service
areas and then move on to describe how the department has
been working to meet these commitments and address the
recommendations identified in the report.

The three main service areas in our department are
housed in the divisions of Protective Services, Corporate
Policy and Consumer Affairs, and Community Development.
The Protective Services division is responsible for emergency

management coordination, first response, and public safety
agencies. This division includes Yukon Emergency Medical
Services, the Fire Marshal's Office, Emergency Measures
Organization, Wildland Fire Management, and Building
Safety and Standards. The Protective Services division
strengthens the territory’s ability to respond to emergencies
and coordinate prevention activities.

Our Corporate Policy and Consumer Affairs division
enforces employment standards and residential tenancy laws,
registers business and non-profit organizations, registers
securities and personal property securities. Other branches in
the Corporate Policy and Consumer Affairs division provide
Yukon taxing authorities with property assessment, regulate
health professions, insurance, real estate professionals and
charitable gaming.

The third division, our Community Development
division, includes our branches of Community Affairs,
Community Operations, Infrastructure Development, Land
Development, Yukon Public Libraries, and the Sport and
Recreation branch. This division provides and supports local
governments and creates collaborative relationships with
communities by providing access to safe drinking water,
maintaining waste-water and solid-waste facilities, and
managing the construction of community-based infrastructure
projects. This division also supports Sport and Recreation and
active living opportunities and oversees the 15 community
libraries across the territory.

| would like to now move on to the report itself and how
Community Services is working to address the
recommendations contained in the report. The report
identified that the Yukon government depariments did not
always comply with key policy requirements. Community
Services has addressed this issue in the following manner.

The department has created a reference checklist
document that program officers across the department now
must use when penerating transfer payment agreements. As
part of this checklist, program officers must also now
categorize the terms of the payments into low, medium or
high risk as a tangible systematic means of capturing the
funding needs of the recipient. As of April 1, 2017,
Community Services program officers must now save a copy
of the certificate from the Yukon corporate online registry
system to demonstrate that a society is in compliance with the
Societies Act.

The department has also developed instructions for
program officers that are on a shared internal website
designed to assist with financial, contracting and
administrative operations and protocols, It includes
standardized templates and forms, and provides staff with a
consistent resource when creating and administering transfer
payment agreements.

To address any outstanding debt that may be owed to the
Yukon government, the department has modified its templates
to include a clause that the recipient must provide written
documentation that identifies they are debt-free before they
receive the first payment. The depariment also works with the
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Department of Finance related to payments due from
societies.

Community Services has also created a decision tree to
assist program officers to identify whether or not a
government transfer should be used versus a contract. As well,
our Finance branch has held a number of strategic
procurement sessions throughout the department to further
educate staff on these changes and requirements going
forward. We have more training sessions scheduled
throughout the 2017-18 year.

The report also identified that Yukon povernment
departments did not consistently use a risk-based approach to
managing government transfers. In order to address this, the
Department of Community Services has developed a risk-
assessment matrix as part of the transfer payment agreements
checklist. The matrix means that program officers are now
analyzing and documenting the assessed risk for funding
levels.

They must consider the following criteria when assessing
a recipient: credibility and track record; size, capacity and
sophistication; community support; skills, experience and
expertise in achieving goals; project management skills;
accounting and record-keeping skills; and any other
foreseeable constraints.

Once the risk matrix is completed, the program officer is
then directed to the appropriate template to use, based on
whether the program is considered low, or medium to high
risk. The document is then filled out by the officer and then is
signed off by two other public officers, including their
supervisor.

The final finding in the report related to our department
identified that we did not fully implement a results-based
approach to determine whether the objectives of government
transfers had been met.

Currently, Community Services is analyzing the
department’s transfers and working on creating a systematic
review process to determine whether these goals and
objectives have been met for these funding agreements. To do
this, the department is developing a form for program officers,
again, to document and assess whether or not these objective
were met, based on mandates and other goals the department
has.

The department includes identifying goals up front and
then linking to government mandate goals for the purpose of
funding prior to creating the agreement. The department is
also analyzing all transfers and working to create a systematic
review process and this process will be in place for
evaluations conducted in 2018.

In conclusion, the Department of Community Services
has worked hard in a short period of time to develop
guidelines and support for program officers to ensure an
appropriate, consistent and fair approach is used when
developing transfer payment agreements without outside
agencies. This approach recognizes our department’s desire to
support the important role societies play in the territory, with
improved accountability and a more methodically applied
risk-based systematic approach. This approach will include

consistent documentation and the completion of the routine
evaluations as part of the agreement’s final deliverables.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Ferbey: 1 am Justin Ferbey, the deputy minister of
Economic Development of the Government of Yukon. Today,
I am joined by our acting director of Finance,
Rebekah Harrison, and our assistant deputy minister,
Mr. Stephen Rose. 1 am here today to present my testimony on
an audit performed by the Office of the Auditor General last
year on government transfers to Yukon societies.

The Department of Economic Development’s mandate is
to develop a diverse, sustainable and competitive economy to
enrich the quality of life of all Yukoners, to pursue economic
initiatives with a shared vision of prosperity, partnerships and
innovation and to forge partnerships with First Nations in the
development of the Yukon Territory's economy.

QOur department is organized to provide and services to
Yukon businesses and residents. The services are delivered to
the public through the Business and Industry Development
branch, the Regional Economic Development branch, the
Technology and  Telecommunications  Development
Directorate and the Yukon Media Development unit with
support of our Corporate Services branch.

The department provides advisory services to small
businesses, collaborates with industry on investment altraction
initiatives and supports industry-driven training and marketing
events. We provide economic research analysis to inform
decision-making and assist clients to access govermnment
programs and services.

The audit report recognized the good work being done
within the Department of Economic Development on
monitering of transfer payments and we are pleased the
Auditor General recognized this work. The Auditor General
also made recommendations in the report where departmental
processes be enhanced and standardized, which we
acknowledge and accept.

The recommendations for Economic Development
focused on risk assessment and included verifying societies as
compliant with legal reporting requirements and documenting
and applying a consistent risk-based approach in assessment
of funding requests and implementation of agreements. Before
the audit was complete, the Department of Economic
Development had already come into compliance with the
recommendations to ensure societies meet their legal
requirements for reporting and do not have outstanding debts
to the government.

At the time the audit was performed, the Department of
Economic Development also had an existing risk-assessment
process in place. However, the Auditor General indicated
these processes needed to be enhanced and applied
consistently. We have taken the necessary steps required to
meet those recommendations.

In response to the audit report, the department formed an
audit recommendation implementation committee to revise
procedures and meet the Auditor General’s recommendations
by Aptil 1, 2017. The following documents were implemented
actoss the department to be used in all program areas in line
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with the April |1 deadline. First: a risk assessment matrix
which is used to assess and score project and recipient risk
and determine an appropriate action plan. Second: transfer
payment agreements and addendum process checklist for
program areas. Third: a transfer payment agreement review
checklist for the Finance branch. Fourth: all the documents are
completed and kept on file with the transfer payment
agreements. Finally, fifth: the department has also introduced
a transfer payment agreement checklist and reference guide
for the information of all department employees for inclusion
in the relevant desk manuals.

Program areas work closely with the Finance and
Information Management unit when assessing projects and
drafting transfer payment agreements to apply appropriate
monitoring, reporting and payment schedule parameters.
Enhancements implemented by the department reflect
improvements to internal processes. These improvements
ensure that we maintain a consistent approach and level of
documentation for each transfer payment. These efforts
complement government policies already in place that provide
extensive coverage and internal controls throughout the
transfer payment process to ensure that all transfers are
legitimate. The Department of Economic Development is
committed to ensuring accountability and value for money
throughout its transfer payment process.

We appreciate the feedback provided by the Auditor
General and the opportunity to improve our processes and
service delivery as a result, Thank you.

Mr. Mills: Good Moming, Mr. Chair, and members of
the Committee. | am Stephen Mills, the deputy minister of
Energy, Mines and Resources. With me is Cheryl Horoscoe,
who is manager of Finance.

Thank you for the opportunity to address the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts regarding the Auditor General
of Canada’s report on government transfers. We welcome the
information contained within this audit report, and we value
the candid advice that comes from going through this kind of
audit.

Transfer payment agreements continue to be an important
tool for many branches of our department and so the proper
execution of these agreements is an ongoing priority. Since
the report was shared with our department last fall, we have
taken action to address all of the recommendations identified
for Energy, Mines and Resources.

More specifically, we have acted on the following.

Regarding the approval of core versus operational
funding, Energy, Mines and Resources will continue to follow
the newer 2008 government transfer policy until a policy issue
is resolved. I understand my colleagues from the Department
of Finance and Executive Council Office will speak to this.

With regard to the issue of legal reporting requirements,
Energy, Mines and Resources now requires that multi-year
agreemenis have an annual verification from the registrar of
societies, With respect to outstanding debt, transfer payment
agreements must have the standard clause from the
agreement’s template that requires recipients to acknowledge
any outstanding debt. [f warranted from the assessment of the

risk analysis, staff can check with the Department of Finance
on a case-by-case basis to identify debt to Yukon government.

The auditor identified the use of contracts versus transfers
as a deficiency, and so Energy, Mines and Resources has
moved to educate program staff in this area, and additional
scrutiny on draft agreements is being coordinated by
departmental Finance branch staff. Energy, Mines and
Resources did not have an adequate risk-assessment process in
place, so completion of a risk form is now mandatory and
includes two signatures from the program area staff,

Finally, Energy, Mines and Resources has updated a
comprehensive checklist that is used to guide staff through the
agreement creation and approval process.

In some areas there was a complete or partial lack of
procedure, which meant that there was no guidance available
for staff. This required putting in place additional processes to
address the recommendations. In addition, there were some
areas in which existing processes and procedures needed
additional clarification for staff, and this has been done.

Mr. Chair, it is important to see audits as an opportunity
for improvement. We found this report to be a useful tool in
improving our internal operations. The Department of Energy,
Mines and Resources has addressed each recommendation in
the report and has implemented improvements that address the
issues that arose in the audit.

Thank you, Mr. Chair and Committee members. We very
much appreciate being able to participate in this process,

Chair: Thank you, Mr. Mills, We will proceed at this
time with questions. I have the first set of questions, and my
first couple of questions are for the Auditor General.

Could the Auditor General please explain how the Office
of the Auditor General of Canada selected government
transfers to societies as a matter for evaluation?

Mr. Ferguson: In the course of our process for
selecting audit topics, what we do is look at the various risks
that face the departments. We take into account a number of
things — what we have audited in the past, what programs are
being delivered — and we look at the risks that are faced in
those programs. We also look at what departments we have
audited lately to try to not keep auditing the same department
over and over again.

In this case, we felt that, given that there had been things
like an intemnal audit done in 2007, there were a couple of
different policies in place and, through our conversations in
assessing the risks, we felt that there could be some issues
related to the transfer payments, so we decided to do that as an
audit. It was a smaller audit, perhaps, than some audits we
have done before, and that’s why we were able to do that audit
along with the other audit we did on the capital assets at the
same time.

Chair: Thank you. The audit did not examine transfers
to municipalities, First Nations or Government of Yukon
organizations. Why were these not examined? Are there plans
to audit these transfers in the future?

Mr. Ferguson: Again, when we are planning an audit,
we have to establish a scope of what we’re going to look at in
the course of that audit to be able to deliver it within a
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reasonable time frame. [ think, in this case, this audit touched
on, | guess, five different government organizations. That in
itself causes some complexity in doing an audit, so we needed
1o keep the scope of the audit restricted so that we could
deliver it within a reasonable time frame. Therefore, we
decided to focus on the transfers to societies. Right now, we
don't have any plans to look at transfers to any other types of
organizations, but that's something that we will consider in
our future planning.

Chair: So the OAG found that the departments did not
always comply with key policy requirements. Paragraph 30
says: “In 2011, the Mountain View Golf Club received a
$750,000 payment through an agreement from the
Government of Yukon. This payment was originally classified
as a government transfer. At the end of the 2010-11 fiscal
year, the payment was reclassified as an ‘other expense.” The
OAG could not determine which policy requirements were
met for this transaction, so these questions would be for
Community Services. Could you please tell us who made the
decision to make this payment, and where did the idea for this
payment originate?

Mr. Moore: The decision to make the payment was
made by the previous government. At the time, the deputy
minister was Mr. Jeff O'Farrell. The documentation that |
have seen indicates that the decision was made around
providing important elements and additions to the Whistle
Bend land development, which was currently being discussed.
Specifically, that related to storm water management and what
has now become the bioswale that takes storm water out of
that area. There was a notion that, as the development phases
all happened, there would be future possibility for
approximately up to 200 lots in that area. As well, the City of
Whitehorse master plan included a perimeter trail that was to
be constructed by Community Services around the entire
subdivision. That trail actually goes through that land.

Chair: What policy requirements were supposed to be
met by this transaction?

Mr. Moore: Those were the policy requirements at the
time. We were undertaking the design of that project. It was
recognized that the addition of that land would assist to meet
those objectives and add value to that whole subdivision as a
whole.

Chair: Thank you. My final question in this round
would be: Under what authority was the money paid out?

Mr. Moore: The document was actually signed off by
the branch and then signed off by the director of Finance for
Community Services,

Of course, that's per chapter 5.5 of the Financial
Administration Manual. Section 29 was signed off by the
branch, the performance authority, and section 30 by the
director. That's per our delegated authority, which derives
ultimately from the minister at the time.

Ms. Hanson: Mr. Moore, [ hear and understand what
you've just said there, and I understand that you're reading
from prepared statements, but what you are saying contradicts
what was actually on record in this Legislative Assembly and
on record with respect to the exchange of documents within

Community Services and EMR. 1 think the question was:
Where did the idea for this payment originate? I’'m not quite
sure that corresponds to what you’ve just said there.

Mr. Moore: When 1 go back through my records, there
absolutely was some discussion about the golf course and the
golf course’s financial situation. Where I picked it wp and
where | was talking about was around the program needs and
where we at Community Services got involved to meet those
requirements for the golf course. In terms of the discussions
that the Committee member is referring to — Ms. Hanson — |
know that there were a number of e-mails. ['ve seen some of
those e-mails with respect to how the golf course was looking
for some financial assistance at the time as well, and then the
program area was working on this development and what
program requiremenis could be met — was what 1 was
referencing.

Ms. Hanson: Was it a decision of Energy, Mines and
Resources or Community Services to change it to “other
expense™?

Mr. Moore: My understanding — and also looking into
this — was that it was actually a Department of Finance
change. Certainly, Community Services classified it as a TPA
— a transfer payment agreement — and that absolutely was in
error, which has been fully acknowledged.

When that made it through to the Department of Finance
— and perhaps my colleague, the deputy minister of Finance
can speak to that more specifically — they noted that this was
the error and moved it to the other category.

Mr. Gallina: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The report
recommends in paragraph 51, that “The Department of
Community Services and the Department of Energy, Mines
and Resources shouid comply with policy requirements for
government transfers, including verifying a society’s
compliance with its legal reporting requirements, determining
that a society does not have any outstanding debts to the
government, and determining when to use a government
transfer instead of a goods and services contract.”

I have a few questions around that. What has Community
Services and EMR done o comply with policy requirements
for government transfers? |1 know you have spoken to that a
little bit, but could you please elaborate?

Mr. Moore: Yes, | alluded to some of that and, more
specifically, we are very much following chapter 5.9 of the
Financial Administration Manual related to government
transfers, We've created a SharePoint site that really will take
our program officers now through a very systematic approach
to how we comply with those. That includes standardized
templates, forms and processes. As well, we have actually
required further signatories so it will actually be going up the
ladder and getting checked off by multiple people before these
things are finalized and sent out.

We are actually, ideally, creating a more systematic
approach so that every time is more conmsistent, and also
having more eyes on each document before it goes out to
make sure we're following that process.

1 would also add — although 1 did allude to that — that
we have had some very successful training and we intend to
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continue that to make sure all of our program officers are
aware of these new changes.

Mr, Gallina: Mr. Mills, did you want to comment?

Mr. Mills: In October 2016, our Energy, Mines and
Resources’ Finance started to request that, when government
transfer agreements are created in the commitment system,
also it is saved with documentation showing that the society is
in compliance with legal reporting requirements. We also
noted that, at times, we have multi-year funding agreements,
so we realized there might be a slight issue on it year by year,
so we require and go out and seek that confirmation every
year. On a three-year agreement, we’ll ensure that every year
the legal reporting requirement is met,

We have instituted a process to ensure the fundee does
not owe outstanding debts to the Government of Yukon.

Energy, Mines and Resources has also reviewed the
process on how to determine whether to use the government
transfer contract and provided presentations to administration
management staff, and we have been running specific sessions
through our branch on a number of cases to ensure that all
staff are aware of these requirements.

Mr. Gallina:  Mr. Mills, further on understanding if a
society has outstanding debts — what are the processes? Is
there a central repository where EMR could contact Finance
or another location to determine this, or is EMR reaching out
to multiple departments?

Mpr. Mills: Mr. Chair, when agreements are created in
the commitment system, Energy, Mines and Resources’
Finance now requires a copy of the certificate from the Yukon
corporate online registry. That shows that the society is in
compliance with the Societies Act. It is attached to the
agreement and it verifies that the society’s status is current.

Mr. Adel: Mr. Moore, on question 6 that Mr. Gallina
just asked you, you have talked about adding extra layers in
the policy. Do you have timelines to move these along in an
appropriate manner? Having been involved in committees,
and so on, that can drag on the more layers we add, are there
timelines attached to this — service standards?

Mr. Moore: We do have a number of service standards
for various things that we do. Generally we try to turn around
any of our interactions that we have with the general public,
with societies, around two weeks in terms of reviewing
bylaws and reviewing their financial statements that would be
of importance to this. We generally try for two weeks. That is
our timeline when we’re interacting with them.

Internally, sometimes developing these transfer
agreements can take more time, and we are absolutely trying
to find that balance between supporting societies and the work
that they do, but adding these new layers, which obviously do
add time. We are hoping to do that by, specifically —
mechanizing is the wrong word, but having a more systemic
approach. We created a SharePoint website, which we are
very pleased with. It was actually recognized recently as a
nomination for a premier’s award. It actually is a very — you
hit a link and you go to this page and you go to this page.
Through that automation, we’re hoping that we won't lose
time in our response to societies, but we will still hit all those

important phases to make sure we have addressed the
comments that were made in this report.

Mr. Adel: Mr. Moore, 1 have one more question on
that. Will the societies be able 1o check in on this website to
see where their process is at? One of the things we often find
is that you put something in and you get no feedback. Is
feedback available through this website or portal that they can
find?

Mr. Moore; Not currently. The SharePoint site is an
internal website for our staff to process these requests. As part
of the online corporate registry, we just had phase 1, which is
for businesses. The next phase will actually allow non-profit
societies to access information. It wouldn’t necessarily be
related to these agreements, but it would be related to
processing some of the other things that [ just referenced,
including bylaw reviews, the status of their standing and those
types of things. So we are working at becoming more publicly
available with that information. The work around these TPAs
themselves and assessments — 1 think that would be a more
internal process around making sure that we have hit all those
boxes.

Mr. Adel: 1 appreciate that, Mr. Moore. All | was
asking is: How do we keep the societies a little bit more
informed? Is there any mechanism that we’re going 1o put
forward that can at least give them a timeline?

Mr. Moore: 1 don’t have a specific answer for that at
this point in time. We certainly try to work as closely as we
can with them and do so. Program officers are in constant
contact with them. As an idea, perhaps as we work toward that
online registry, there may be a way we can actually include
some status updates around actual agreements themselves, |
haven’t looked into that, but it may be something we can take
from this and ask those questions.

Mr. Gallina: Has there been clarification between
goods and service contracts and government transfers? If so,
can you please elaborate on the differences of the two?

Mr. Moore: Absolutely. We have created a decision
tree on our SharcPoint site, and this goes very specifically to
that kind of decision-making process that 1 was referencing.
We actually have a number of questions that we expect our
program officers to ask and answer. They would be working
with the society to understand what the program objectives are
and the nature of who they are working with. It goes through
that checklist.

I can specifically give you some specifics about what
some of those questions are, but basically it comes down to —
there are questions like: Is it for profit? What are the end
results? Are we gaining something as a government? Those
are the types of questions. Are they providing a service for us
on our behalf?

We po through that checklist and then, depending on the
result, it actually pushes you toward the TPA or nudges you
toward a contract. We are trying o make sure that we have
standardized those decisions.

Mr. Gallina: In standardizing these processes — and |
am hearing about the improvements — what considerations
were made when these improvements were being put together
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or rolled out? What considerations were being made for the
end-user in actually being able to access funds and making
their lives potentially easier?

Mr. Moore: Certainly timeliness is absolutely a key
factor here, but also reporting, That is something that we have
heard very clearly, and [ think we will get into some more of
that later — the whole evalvation piece and how significant
that is. We are well aware that it can be potentially very time-
consuming, especially for some of our smaller organizations.
As we are going through that, puiting things out front —
understanding what the deliverables are and how they relate to
mandates — so that, when we come to evaluations at the end,
that is not as chalienging for recipients to provide that kind of
detail. We are also trying to look at understanding risk better.
For a larger organization, perhaps it is easier for them to
manage some of the reporting requirements. For smaller
organizations with a smaller amount of funding, whatever
those thresholds will or can be, we actually have a risk matrix
that helps us identify where we are at — whether it's low,
medium or high risk. If it’s a low-risk, smaller organization
and a smaller amount of money, in some of that reporting the
up-front details are reduced to make sure that we are not
imposing undue hardship on organizations that are actually —
oftentimes, as we all know — working very hard to deliver
things that are valuable to all of us. We are trying to find that
balance between what we need to meet these requirements and
also make sure that it is not ioo onerous on these
organizations.

Mr. Gallina: | know that we have touched on this, but
is there now a policy in place for all departments to ensure
that the societies are in good standing prior to receiving
government funds? When was that completed?

Mr, Moore; As of April 1, 2017, it is now a
requirement for our program officers to save a file of the
certificate, and they get that from the Yukon corporate online
registry showing that they are in compliance with the Societies
Aet.

Mr. Gallina: s there a cross-department checklist used
to see whether complementary funding is available? How do
the departments make sure a society is made aware of all
resources available to them?

Mr. Moore: There is no formal cross-department
checklist. Program officers, if they are doing their job, will be
working very — and | think that they do — closely to
understand the recipient’s requirements and directing them to
further opportunities. We all know things that are out there —
community development fund, lotteries, et cetera. There is no
formal checklist, but we do, for both purposes, try to make
sure that they are aware of all the opportunities. We also want
to understand what pots of money an organization might be
drawing from to deliver their programs. Sometimes we need
to do that because, if they don’t get something out of one pot,
the money they get out of another pol won’t be enough to
deliver the objective they are trying to get. We do need to
understand that, and we work with recipienis on a case-by-
case basis to understand that picture, but no formal,
documented checklist exists at this point.

Ms. Hanson: Just as a follow-up to that, Mr. Ferbey, it
seems to me that the two departments that would be most
closely aligned in this field would be Community Services
and Economic Development. Does your department,
Economic Development — what link do you have with
Community Services because of the societies or organizations
that may be caught in one policy pot and not in another?

Mr. Ferbey: Mr. Chair, in the department we do have a
spreadsheet that’s available to all the staff — and it is updated
weekly — that provides all our funding areas and all of the
funding agreements we have in the works. With that, we also
go out 1o ensure that there is other funding available that we
would try to leverage. With Community Services, we have
spoken with Community Services on some of the projects.
Largely, with any of the projects that we see potentially could
have, for example, infrastructure funding, we would actively
talk at the deputy minister level and at the program level to
see if we could access those funds.

For our clients, we would do that service — always look
internally, given our budgets are relatively modest, to see if
we could leverage on behalf of clients and discuss at the
departmental level, so there would be ongoing verbal dialogue
if we see a project that could potentially access multiple
funds, realizing that, in a lot of the areas, you can’t necessarily
stack territorial dollars or federal dollars, but we would also
look into those terms of reference to see if it’s something we
could talk to our clients about.

Mr. Moore: If |1 could, | would also add — for
example, with the community development fund evaluation
process — members from many depariments — but certainly
Community Services — would actively participate in the
analysis and recommendations on that so there are eyes from
different departments on all those funding requests to make
sure — are there other opportunities, where are they looking,
what else can we build on — trying to find those ways to
assist and understand the program needs.

We have mulli-departmental committees that work
together on many of these established pots, like the
community development fund.

Ms. Hanson: ['ll move on. There are some specific
questions with respect to Community Services. What we try to
do is focus on the responses that are made by the departments
to the recommendations from the Auditor General.

The deputy has touched on these already, but we will
want to have them on the record. The recommendation said
that it will better comply with policy requirements related to
government transfers by ensuring that documentation is saved
in the agreement file demonstrating the society's compliance
with the Societies Act, including a statement from the society
that there are no outstanding debts to the Government of
Yukon, and developing guidelines and offering training
sessions on how to decide whether to use a government
transfer or a contract.

The first question is: Is documentation now being saved
in all agreement files demonstrating a society’s compliance
with the Societies Act?
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Mr. Moore: It has been a long-standing practice of
Community Services to check the corporate registry prior to
entering into an agreement with recipients. However, as noted,
as accepted, the documentation wasn’t there. It was done
visually; we did the check and the documentation wasn’t
there. As of April 1, 2017, as | noted, it’s now a requirement
to save a copy showing that they’re in full compliance with
the Societies Act in the agreement file. That’s a requirement.
As you go through that form, it is noted upfront that has to be
done before you can move on to the next step.

Ms. Hanson: Was that accomplished by revising the
application form for the funding programs, or was a clause
added into the agreements attesting to the fact that they are in
compliance?

Mr. Moore: They attest to the fact that they're in
compliance and it’s also part of the form we actually go
through as we’re analyzing and working through approval of
an agreement.

Ms. Hanson: Could you please outline the elements of
the guidelines available to staff on how to decide whether they
should be using a government transfer or a contract? What
would be the things that would lead them to make that
decision or make that recommendation?

Mr. Moore: 1 actually have a screenshot here of the
document, and I’ll just read. They would click down to this —
use a TPA, transfer payment agreement, in the following
circumstances: transfer funds to recipient from a funding
program, which may be application-based; transfer funds to
recipient, which is generally a non-profit organization in
which we are contributing to expenditures and such
contributions are reasonable. There is no direct exchange of
goods or services, as in YG doesn’t receive anything. YG is
contributing to a venture with identifiable, direct, relevant
opportunity, and with no indirect costs or overhead. I think the
non-profit has its own capacity to manage the project and will
not contract out a significant part of the project to a third
party. Examples of TPAs that we provide are sporting games
funding, funding programs such as gas tax, Yukon recreation
assistance grants, operational funding such as community
libraries funding or recycling depot funding. Those are a few
things around how they would make that decision about
TPAs.

With respect to a contract, we would use that — they are
generally for a prefit that we’re working with, as opposed to a
non-profit organization. YG receives value for money spent.
YG receives value for goods and services in exchange for
money — provided even if the transaction may benefit a
contracting third party, and so even if they are subbed, going
out and getting a contract with somebody else — YG directly
receives poods or services, there’s a quote or a proposal
needed. Examples are: tangible goods for Yukon government
studies or reports, project management, advertising, projects
that display the YG logo — and it carries on with some other
details,

Ms. Hanson: Just as a follow-up to that — when you
say that Yukon government doesn’t receive anything, [ can
understand that if it’s material only, but if you are in a transfer

payment arrangement with a society that operates a
community library, it has a government logo and has
everything except that it’s not a government entity. It’s not a
contract — or is that a TPA?

Mr. Moore: That would be a TPA. We use a TPA
there. 1t fits in because it's a recipient that’s a non-profit
organization. These are independent boards. There is no direct
exchange of goods or services.

Ms. Hanson: [ don’t want to be argumentative, but you
are exchanging — in the sense that you're giving those
societies exactly the same books and the expectation. As a
citizen, I'm going at that from the point of view — and when
we're talking about funding to societies — we’re talking
about what we're doing to provide services or assistance to
societies to assist the community.

In a community where there is no access to a public
library, except through a community library, why would we
continue the arrangement to have it as a contribution to a
sociely as opposed to a contractual arrangement that makes it
clear that they’re doing this on contract, to provide a service
that the Government of Yukon does provide in the City of
Whitehorse?

Mr. Moore: Clearly you can see why it is important to
have this decision-making tree because there are many
decision points. I think on the balance of scale, the fact they
are non-profit — there is no profit-taking here — and they are
delivering a service on behalf of the Yukon government that
in general — this isn’t something that the Auditor General
noted as a challenge — that we are following those rules very
clearly and that the best way, according to our transfer
payment policy and FAM, is through a transfer payment
agreement.

Ms. Hanson: The crux of the question was how you
make the decision between using a government transfer
payment and a contract. | have just outlined an example
where, in fact, they are delivering a service that is a
Government of Yukon service everywhere else, except in the
communities.

Mr. Moore: Perhaps ['m not understanding. While they
are direct employees in the City of Whitehorse — while the
public librarians are direct employees here, we are still
supporting them as part of our library system. That is part of
our government — part of Community Services’ role to do.
So it is on behalf of us, as a department and as a government,
that they are doing that work and as a non-profit. Going
through that checklist that we have, that is seen as the best
way to fund those at this point in time.

I'm sorry — perhaps it is a bit challenging to go through
this list here without actually seeing this in front of you. I’'m
sorry if 1 read it fairly quickly, but given that list of checklist
items, when we look at the contract that is generally for profit,
we would go out for a tender, for example — a competitive
process — which of course we wouldn't do here. We would
receive direct goods and services — and 1 understand that is
part of the point you're making — is that we are getting the
service of libraries in the communities, but that is one of the
items that we would have a quote or proposal — that sort of
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thing. So given those two lists that are laid out in policy, it
best fits under the transfer payment agreement list.

Ms. Hanson: It just seems archaic, Mr. Chair. It
doesn’t make sense,

Mr. Adel: The Department of Energy, Mines and
Resources responded to the OAG's recommendation by
saying — quote: “... will request that when a government
transfer agreement is created in the commitment syslem, it is
saved with documentation showing that the society is in
compliance with legal reporting requirements and that it does
not owe outstanding debts to the Government of Yukon. The
Department will also review the process on how to decide
whether to use a government transfer or contract.”

The questions | have are for the Department of Energy,
Mines and Resources. What measures has EMR taken to
comply with policy requirements related to government
transfers? 1 will qualify this — 1 understand, Mr. Mills, you
covered some of this in your opening statements, but bear
with me as we go through some of these, please.

Mr. Mills: In October 2016, we started to request that
when a government transfer agreement is created in the
commitment system that it is saved with documentation
showing that the society is in compliance with legal reporting
requirements and that it does not owe outstanding debts to the
Government of Yukon. For larger agreements, we also have
an enhanced role, where our manager of financial operations
is involved in reviewing draft versions before they sign and
process in the commitment system. All agreements are
reviewed by EMR Finance staff before being committed in the
finance system,

A system assessment workshop was also created — or
sorTy, a risk assessment workshop is also done and is required
to be completed, signed and attached for all agreements. An
agreement checklist is being used as well in our department.
So our risk assessment worksheet, which we did attach to the
document that we provided you, gives us an opportunity to
look at a number of factors. It guides us on the potential flow
of funds to the potential recipients. There are enhanced
reporting requirements.

So it does guide us on past practice or lack of maybe
history or knowledge of those individuals or those
organizations. So it helps us to understand when we may have
to have some enhanced reporting requirements — maybe
control the funding flows a bit more carefully, dealing with
holdbacks and so on. So we have had practices in the past
where we have applied that. But we have brought about a
stricter risk assessment process, as well as very much
tightened our internal procedures as we proceed or as we
consider the appropriate funding mechanism.

Mr. Adel: Has EMR reviewed the process on how it
decided whether to use a government transfer or contract?
What has changed since this review?

Mr. Mills: We have reviewed the process. The
auditor’s review covered off four funding agreements to non-
profits. Three were to the same organization, one to another
organization. The one organization that ended up having three

— being reviewed on the three different funding mechanisms
was the Klondike Placer Miners’ Association.

We have looked at what is the appropriate mechanism.
We note that, with regard to the 2008 government transfer
policy, we do have to look at this issue about whether
government is acquiring goods, services or an asset directly in
return for resources. [ also note that it states that we also need
to know if it requires goods and services as a by-product. So
in these cases, we are very much looking at what is the
appropriate funding mechanism.

1 think, Mr. Chair, as the other members pointed oul,
there is a — 1 think there remains a grey area between the
TPA and a contract. 1 would note that even in some of our
funding mechanisms, we have a small number that — we fund
non-profit groups.

Most of our TPAs are related to the Yukon mineral
exploration program or through energy programs and others.
Those are large funding agreements, but those are for-profits.
Those are in the hundreds or the 100 to 200 range, as a
guesslimate.

With regard to these six, we do have to look at that
because, for example, our funding to the Yukon Wood
Products Association, the Yukon Agricultural Association and
the Growers of Organic Food Yukon — they provide a real
service to their membership. At the point here when we were
looking at the audit, at times, they are also providing policy
review of new policies on the government, 1 just point that out
— that is something we need to look at a bit further, because
the initial funding packages are very much about their
organization working with their membership, but we do need
to look at some of these additional potential add-ons that
occur, whether it’s right to be an amendment to a TPA or
whether it’s a contract for services.

We have very much improved our processes, but there are
some grey areas, | think, even with Community Services and
Finance, where we do need to work further to identify what is
the most appropriate mechanism to flow funding, and
especially additional funding.

Sorry for the length of the answer, Mr. Chair.

Chair: Fine, thank you.

Mr. Adel: 1']l make this a short question, Mr. Mills. Do
you have a timeline on completing this type of review and
working in the grey areas?

Mr. Mills: Thank you for the question. Mr. Chair, we
have not set a firm timeline, but 1 appreciate the question. |
think the onus is on us to set a clear timeline to do this and
include working with the other departments so that there’s
consistency across government.

Mr. Adel: How do staff now make a decision on
whether to use a government transfer or a contract?

Mr. Mills: Currently, we review the drafi agreements.
This includes examining if the work described is best handled
as a contract. As | mentioned before, what’s in the 2008
policy regarding acquiring goods and services or an asset
directly, or as a by-product — that is part of our discussions.
Additional training has been provided to staff to provide
clarity on this issue. Starting in October 2016, we have had
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briefings with those involved in this work in our department
on the differences, and the use of contracts versus transfer
payment agreements was discussed. Our Finance staff — in
particular, the manager of financial operations — also reviews
all the agreements and identifies the program areas those that
should be utilized either through a contract or a TPA.

Mr. Cathers: Thank you, first of all, to all the
witnesses for appearing here this morning. A few of the
questions | had have actually been answered, so | will drop
those.

| would like to begin with a question for Community
Services. Community Services, 1 understand, has implemented
a risk assessment with an overall score for project risk and, |
believe, as well, recipient risk. I understand that you have
scored that high, medium and low. Can you elaborate a little
bit on how you reached that determination and what some of
the key factors are in making that assessment?

Mr. Moore: 1 mentioned a few things already about the
size capacity of the organization itself. Our document itself
begins with looking at determining first of all whether it's
operational or project funding. Of course, that was also
something that was identified and we are working on
distinguishing between those two and making sure that we are
then following the correct protocols based on that. Then,
depending on whether it is operational or project funding, we
would then look at how we would roll out that funding over
the course of a year — basically the cash flow.

We have a number of categories up to a certain amount
— that sort of thing. We would look at how we formulate cash
flow based on that kind of funding and that criteria I
mentioned earlier around the size, the outstanding concerns
that we may have, the project itself — if it is a project and that
sort of thing — the duration of the project,

The matrix itself has — we look at low, medium and
high, and we would give it a score. So it would be the money
involved, the complexity and the sensitivity. Is this high
profile? Is this a standard kind of thing that we would do on a
regular basis? The credibility and track record of the
organization — as | mentioned, the size, capacity and
sophistication. General community support: Is there just a few
people or is it a broad-based organization? The skills,
experience and expertise to achieve the project goal — project
management skills, accounting record management skills,

So for each of those, we have a matrix we would score.
Based on that, it would push us into the kind of TPA we
would use. That is where we would get into the short form,
low-risk TPA or the long-form, high-risk TPA. Generally, as a
rule, we would push toward — anything over $100,000
automatically going toward that long-form risk. It is the
smaller ones that we are trying to keep more expedient and
simpler for smaller asks, for smaller organizations.

Mr. Cathers: [ appreciale the response. The next
question on my list is — 1 understand that Community
Services' risk-based approach is consistent, but | would just
ask for confirmation of that with the 2008 transfer policy that
is in the Financial Administration Manual.

The second part of my question is whether that risk
assessment under that matrix — does it differ significantly
between the different funding programs, since Community
Services has a wide range — everything from the sporting
programs and after-school, which obviously are a different
type of program and have significantly different measurables
in terms of cutcome from some other program areas?

Mr. Moore: To answer the first question, yes, we are
fully in compliance with the 2008 government transfer policy.

With respect to the second question, we don’t distinguish
between funding pot or what area. We're trying to get a
consistent use of the same templates no matter which pot it is.
But we are absolutely trying to make the distinction, which is
the kind of program that we're trying to support. Basically,
that’s where we would use that risk assessment. If it’s a
smaller organization, smaller complexity and smaller amount,
we would try to stream it in that direction — higher in the
other direction, as ! described. So the only line or distinction
we’re making is between low risk, medium risk and high risk.

Mr. Cathers: Actually, I believe you've already
answered the next question | had, so [ won’t repeat it. But a
question, then, that | would have is: When it comes to the risk
assessment, could you elaborate a little bit on how that works
with — a couple of the examples that come to mind are with
the Yukon Recreation Advisory Council. The decision around
funding is not just being made by program officers. So how
does the risk assessment work in that context? Is the
information shared with the board members of YRAC or not
about how that risk has been assessed?

The second program area 1 would just ask about is how
that works with the community recreation assistance prants,
which are in fact a legislated requirement under order-in-
council.

Mr. Moore: With respect to YRAC — when we are
assessing risk, it’s specifically around how we deliver the
funding agreement, So it’s what funding agreement, what kind
of requirements we need in that funding agreement. So it's not
necessarily fitting into an approval process, which would be a
whole series of policies that get us there through YRAC and
meeting certain requirements.

The risk assessment is then — to be specific about this
example — the committee would then make its
recommendations. Then il goes through other decision
processes. Then when it comes to the department to deliver,
what kind of TPA are we going to then use? That’s when we
would take this matrix out and go — you know, the size and
all those things 1 just listed. The criteria would determine how
we deliver the money, but it doesn’t necessarily feed back up
into whether or not an organization is going to be funded or
not. That decision would be policy-based, mandate-based and
that sort of thing.

CRAG — for the second part of the question — as a
legislative grant, is much more — that funding is determined
and we would — it fits right into our existing processes
already — how we do legislative grants through a TPA. So it
would fit through this as well and the amount would fit it in.
So we would run it through that risk matrix again on a
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delivery process. But the recreation authorities themselves —
because it’s a legislative grant — would know they're getting
that money and how the money is going to {low.

Mr. Cathers: | appreciate the answers in that area. I'm
just going to move on to the Department of Economic
Development.

I understand that Economic Development has
implemented a risk assessment for departmental funds with an
overall score for both project risk and recipient risk. My first
question would be: First of all, can you confirm that that has
been applied as of April 1 to all of the contracts and transfer
agreements? Secondly, when it comes down to that risk
assessment, are you using a similar model to the Department
of Community Services in a high, medium, low scoring for
risk or is it a different assessment? Secondly, when it comes to
the type of information that is being required, based on that
risk assessment, is it similar to Community Services or is it a
different model that’s being used by Economic Development?

Mr. Ferbey: We are adhering to 100 percent of our
areas where we’re funding to the risk assessment. Just to give
a sample of our risk matrix, we assess both project risk and
recipient risk. For example, on project risk, we’ll look at
things like the dollar value, the complexity of the projects and
the public profile. For the recipient risk, we’ll look at
credibility and the track record of recipients, the skills and
expertise of the project management team. We’ll also look at
the stability of the recipient. We also grade this similar to
Community Services in high, medium and low. With that,
depending on the risk profile — similar to Community
Services, if it's Jow risk, we’ll have a short order form for
TPA and ifit’s high risk, a long-order form.

In addition to that, in our guidelines, depending on the
risk profile, we'll also change some of the terms and
conditions in a TPA to reflect the kind of visibility that we
need on the expenditure of funds and the allocation of funds
and of course, in real time, measure some of the results to
ensure that the dollars are adequate. Again, more effort is used
if the risk profile is higher for the client.

Mr. Cathers: Thank you. You've already partly
answered my next question which was whether the results of
that scoring assessment are being reflected in the conditions of
the funding agreement. Can you elaborate on whether —
particularly for those higher risk projects — what steps are
taken by Economic Development staff — as the project is
ongoing, in particular, in terms of ones that are project-
specific — what additional measures might be taken by staff
to monitor the progress of the project as it, hopefully, is
underway?

Mr. Ferbey: On the risk matrix, there are two officers
who will sign off, but I'll just give you a sample out of our
reference guide on some of the different approaches we take,
depending on the risk profile.

If low risk, it would entail just your standard terms and
conditions that apply to all programs with relatively minimal
reporting requirements. Medium risk — the outputs,
measurables and reporting requirements are aimed at
providing evidence the funds are expended on the tasks.

Certain interim terms and conditions may have to be met
during the life of the project before the final payment is made.
If we're looking at medium to high risk, the concerns of this
level of funding should be identified for performance
measures, expected resufts and outcomes. The programming
may be more complex and performance information required
may be more extensive. In some cases, non-audited financial
statements prepared by an independent accountant or audited
financial statements of the project would be required after
project completion,

In the case of high risk, the concern at this level should be
the execution of the project and its evaluation upon
completion. A high-risk project and high-risk recipient should
be monitored closely, Some examples of the actions or
activities that it would take could be frequent accounting and
reporting requirements, monthly progress reporis, on-site
inspection by program officers, and, in all cases, our senior
advisors — or in the case of the CDF, there are often ongoing
discussions with clients, weekly discussions. Formally, when
they have determined the risk profile, those provisions are put
in the TPA to ensure adequate expenditure of public funds.

Mr. Cathers: ['m going to move on to Energy, Mines
and Resources. Can you provide an explanation of how
Energy, Mines and Resources is taking a more methodical
approach to applying a risk-based approach to funding and
transfers, and also indicate whether you're using a similar
matrix for assessing risk, in terms of high, medium and low, to
what Community Services and Economic Development are
doing or, if it"s a different model, how that mode! looks?

Mr. Mills: We did provide a copy of the form that we
use as we're doing a risk assessment. It is a different model
from that of Community Services and Economic
Development. We have a larger range, from what we would
consider o be no risk up to extreme risk — and then it
identifies the need for mitigation strategies.

We have a bit of a broader range, but some of the things
that we look at are the project timeline, the dollar range. With
regard to prior history and success — and again I’ll point out
that with regard to government transfers, EMR transfers to
societies. We have a very small number of ongoing transfers
to societies and very much a long-term relationship wiih those
societies. Over time, we have realized where there are
challenges and where there are not, so we're able to evaluate
those. When it comes to the risk assessment with regard to
some of the other funding programs, this risk assessment is
imporiant — prior history and success, whether we have an
excellent working relationship right up to poor working
relationships, or non-existent, for new applications. We
looked at some of the project barriers and also the capacity of
those organizations. Also, with regard to the project
ownership — so some of the funding that may be asked for by
some of these organizations is part of a farger program that

they are part of. The risk — if they are entirely in control
versus if they are becoming a smaller percentage pariner in a
project.

Project sensitivity is also important. That means that if
you move from a very low up to a very high public or political
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interest — or extremely contentious, because that in itself can
impact on whether or not a project actually makes it through
the year. Some of the projects by some of our funding partners
— an example would be some of the wetland work being done
through the Klondike Placer Miners’ Association or through
the Chamber of Mines. They are undertaking work that is
related to working with First Nations and YESAA, in some
cases, on guidance for its proponents. It could be at a point
where it can be so contentious that these projects sort of don’t
make it through the year or they end up having to be stopped.

We do look at that and ensure we structure the funding,
recognizing that there are some potential hurdles or barriers
throughout the year, so that guides the kind of structure. We
do have a long- or short-form TPA that we can use based on
our risk assessments. Again, [ would note that, when it comes
to societies, we do, for the most part, have a fairly long-term
relationship with those societies.

Mr. Cathers: What type of documentation is required
now that wasn't in the past? How does that vary across the
different risk levels in the transfer agreements and contracts?

Mr. Mills: The documentation — | have mentioned
some of this. We did the risk assessment worksheet that needs
to be done and needs to be signed off by two officials within
our department. That is to be part of going forward with any
transfer payment agreements. The relevant staff have been
trained on the use of the documents. We also have a checklist
that we also provided in our response to allow for a number of
steps so that our staff are able to work through a methodical
approach to dealing with TPA requests.

I would also note — and it’s going back a bit to my last
question. It’s not that we weren’t doing risk assessment in the
past. In fact, a number of our funding programs — and this
steps a bit outside the scope, ultimately, of this audit. We have
risk assessments built right in to our funding proposal review
process for Growing Forward 2 programs under the
Agriculture branch, as well as the Yukon mineral exploration
program has had some key risk assessments built in as factors
to consider as you move through for evaluating a number of
funding proposals that are being put forward.

Mpr. Cathers: What measures has Energy, Mines and
Resources taken to ensure current staff in positions dealing
with these types of agreements and transfers are aware of the
responsibilities, and is it part of the orientation for new staff
who either have these duties as part of their substantive
positions or may at times be in an acting position covering off
these areas of responsibility?

Mr. Mills: | just have one question to clarify first.
Energy, Mines and Resources has worked with Finance as
well, but we have created and provided a government transfer
agreement checklist and risk assessment worksheets, as | have
mentioned previously. We also started using these documents
in late September 2016. Our response to the Auditor General’s
report indicated bringing in this risk assessment — responding
to this on April I, 2017 — but we were able to implement this
much earlier.

Energy, Mines and Resources has also made these new
forms available that, again, were attached to the package that
we provided to you.

On the department’s internal website, it has presented a
number of short-term information sessions as well as
refreshers for various levels of staff within our organization,

Work was initiated on this immediately after the Auditor
General’s recommendations were agreed to and will continue
as staff change and subsequent training is needed. We do
frequently also have orientation for new staff, which includes
both orientation from a senior management level, including
myself, right through all the rules and procedures for all new
staff when they come into Energy, Mines and Resources,

It provides a summary of all documents on the EMR
finance web page. It includes a presentation by the manager of
financial operations on overatl work done by the finance staff.
It also runs through all the checklists and risk assessments for
transfer agreements.

Ms. Hanson: 1 have just a couple of follow-up
questions. From all three departments, we have heard about
some good work being done with respect to developing a risk-
based approach in managing government fransfers. My
question is: What cross-department consultation discussion
has occurred so that — we talked about Community Services
and Economic Development having theirs, and then EMR,
recognizing perhaps there’s a difference in scope and some
activities, but there are common themes in this risk
assessment. I’m just looking for what consistency there is
across the departments and how is that manifested. Did you
have conversations? Is this part of a working group? Is it all
done individually by departments with no cooperation or
collaboration? That is what I'm looking for.

Mr. Ferbey: There seems to be similarity across the
risk assessment. Of course, all of us are looking at 5.9 in the
Financial Administration Manual, which provides us the
overarching framework for the risk assessment. To your point,
I think further work obviously should be done in concert with
us implementing the recommendations from the audit to spend
some time to look at our different risk assessments, realizing
that standardization is useful. In fact, that's one of the
recommendations in the audit and that’s something we'll
definitely put on the work plan to discuss further across the
deputy minister table and with colleagues here to ensure that,
if some of us have some strong examples of how we’re doing
it, we can share, and vice versa.

Mr. Mills:  Aiso with regard to the question, we do have
a department administrator liaison committee, which covers
all the different departments. They meet on a monthly basis,
so topics such as these and the results of the Auditor General’s
report are elements as we deal with cross-department issues
and seek consistency. Part of this work is also with the
Department of Finance.

Ms. Hanson: | meant to pick up on that. I think we will
have an opportunity this afternoon — the overarching goal of
the central agency is quite important there, so | hope to see
that with all depariments.
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I just want to come back to — we have examples of these
various risk assessment documents. I said this to fellow
Committee members the other day — as somebody who
worked in the public service for almost 30 years — that
sometimes there’s a tendency for us to respond to comments
or critiques by piling on more paper. My question is: Do these
documents enhance our capacity or just make it more
complex?

Is it built into the process to go back and review — for
example, the risk assessment matrix and the addendum
process, because we are adding another layer of compliance
within our public service? Sometimes that can cause issues as
well.

| guess my question is: In putting this together in these
various matrices, is the objective to demonstrate that, yes, we
heard the Auditor General and this is what we are going to do,
but how do you individually as deputies intend to assess
whether or not they are achieving the purpose?

Mpr. Mills: Because there is transition staff and because
I think consistency across departments — and staff are
moving between departments — is an important aspecl here,
our matrix looking different from other departments and
whether ours is overly cumbersome is really one that we
would want to seek a review from our staff who are using it
and identify which of these mairices may be more effective.

I don’t think this piles on additional work. I think that
actually the work is when we issue a funding agreement where
we have to deal with more of either damage control or trying
1o get the reporting in because we didn’t use a matrix
appropriately. [ think that that the checklist is really useful
because it helps with staff transition. We have built more
effective administrative assistant manuals, and so on, that are
really effective checklists. | have heard very good comments
back about improvements in that there are manuals that can be
used by those individuals to help guide decisions.

I can speak with Energy, Mines and Resources over the
last 18 months now, but we have put in additional measures to
try to ensure consistency in decision-making when you don’t
always have consistency in the staff. Without a doubt, [ think
it is worthwhile looking at some of these matrices with the
other departments to try to find ways to come up with a more
effective decision matrix and also signal what a decision of
high risk means when it comes to how you design the funding
structure over a year or how that links to the response of
additional reporting that might be required.

I think they are very helpful tools. This isn’t just putting it
on a piece of paper so that we can say to the Auditor
General’s office that we have done this job, because they may
be back to audit us again on other issues, and | think it is
useful to actually look at the audit results and respond to them
in an appropriate matter that improves the work of
government.

Mr. Cathers: These questions are sort of for all
departments in this case. First of all, we have received a large
amount of e-mail volume, so if we have already received it,
then thank you for sending it, but if it hasn't, | would just ask

if we could get copies of the risk matrix decision tree and the
key documentation that each department is using.

1 would just note for the Auditor General to feel free to
correct me if I’'m mischaracterizing this in any way, but |
think it’s fair to say that both the current Auditor General and
the previous Auditor General noted that, in improving
accountability, the solution isn’t necessarily a lot more
paperwork. My concern relates to the fact that, as we've seen
from situations, the result of a previous Auditor General
looking into a specific matter involving the federal
government led, in large part, to the Federal Accountability
Act and some of the significantly increased paperwork, both
beforehand and afier the fact, that has had a significant impact
on the Yukon government — I know in areas, including the
infrastructure funding, it has resulted in both inefficiency in
the use of federal dollars and significantly increased
paperwork and staff time being required to meet those federal
requirements.

My concern is that, when there is an issue that arises as a
result when the Auditor General or others find that there may
be an issue with accountability on the part of government,
there tends to be a natural response to trend toward more
paperwork in every area. I would just note that concern and
ask the various deputies whether there’s a concern that the
current model may have gone a little too far toward requesting
more paperwork, and if there’s a plan to review it, especially
in the early periods of its implementation, to determine
whether there can be some reduction in the volume of
paperwork being placed on those receiving the funding and
the amount of staff time within Yukon government that is
taken up in ensuring these accountability requirements are
met?

Mr. Ferbey: 1 believe all of the colleagues in our
department have provided the documentation on the risk
matrix and the various guidelines.

I think for us, given the fact that, prior to the audit, we did
have a risk matrix in place and a risk assessment — but we
just didn’t apply it consistently enough — it hasn’t added on a
new layer of bureaucracy or paperwork that has an impact on
our clients. In fact, in some ways, it's quite the opposite.
When you start going through the risk mairix and you start
locking up, for example, project risk, the kind of dialogues
that come up deepen our understanding of what the client is
trying to achieve. In many instances for our department —
because we have senior business advisors, when we’re going
through the risk matrix, if there are areas where, for example,
working with clients who can use non-financial assistance,
going through the risk assessment allows us to comport
ourselves to organize ourselves internally to potentially help
clients. In that instance, if we didn’t have such a robust system
now, we may not have some of these dialogues with some of
the clients early on as they're seeking funding. In many
instances, the actual risk matrix has improved our efficiencies
— really understanding what the clients are trying to achieve
and how we can assist in non-financial ways, in addition to if
they are seeking financial resources.
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Mr. Moore: Mr. Chair, I guess | would just add to that
— 1 agree that oftentimes — 1 puess in some ways, this
responds to both the questions. They’re fairly similar. But we
have actually seen — and the articulated expectation of this —
this doesn’t just add more — it also actually — by creating
finer distinctions between the kinds of recipients and the kinds
of projects that we're supporting — I would expect — and we
have talked about the fact that smaller organizations and
smaller projects — and perhaps this is where it is different
between different departments. We deal with 155 TPAs a year
to non-profit groups. So there is a huge range of capacities
there. Some of the smaller groups or smaller requests we can
actually deal with more simply by having more defined
guidelines. We have talked about that being something that is
really — we hope that, because we have this really well laid
out from the outset, people will be able to make those
distinctions, document them properly and we will have done
our due diligence at that point in time, instead of having to
treat everybody with the full scope of things. We have
identified that.

I think we have also talked about the fact that we will
need to review this after our first year. We know that our full
evaluation process won’t be coming in unti! 2018, once this
round of applicants — TPAs that are out from this fiscal year
will be done. We will be doing that full evaluation next year,
so that will give us a good opportunity 10 review that process
and get that kind of feedback as well.

Chair: Mr. Mills, did you have anything to add to that?

Mr, Mills: A lot of the work that has been identified
was being done, but not necessarily documented or following
a certain matrix, so | would agree with both Economic
Development as well as Community Services that this hasnt
really been an add-on of additional work and time
requirements. It does, in many cases, make for better projects.
It does make for better relationships, or at least more decisive
relationships, when the risk assessments are showing
extremely high risk on certain projects.

It also gives some guidance to those individuals who are
applying for the funds that, in order to remove and lower the
risk criteria or in order to receive funding, we need to see
some changes in either their proposal or the statement of what
their intention is and everything. 1 don’t think this really adds
to it. [ would also note that, yes, there is a lot of paperwork
out there. I'm not sure if these add, but I think there is a need
to look at various policies of how we operate in government to
try to decrease the unnecessary paperwork. | would just flag
projects such as the new time, leave and labour and other
processes are ways that are being very effective at reducing
certain loads, especially on those real transactional and paper-
heavy processes.

1 think we just need to look at this, do the review — as
my colleague Mr. Moore, had to say — do a review over the
next few months, decide if these matrixes then have to be
amended, but also continue to try to reduce the unnecessary
paperwork. That is part of government, unfortunately, and 1
think there is a lot that can be removed,

Ms. Hanson: Just one final follow-up to the — 1 think
implicit or explicit in my question earlier was that aspect of
review, Mr. Moore has mentioned that his intention is to look
at this in 2018, in retrospect, based on the time frames of
certain agreements that are in place.

Do Economic Development and EMR have built in to the
implementation of new risk assessments and various matrices
— do you have built into that a review in one year or 18
months from now, so that you will be able to objectively
assess whether or not these are achieving the objectives that
you had when you put them into place, and/or it needs to be
reviewed, amended or nixed?

My, Ferbey: For Economic Development, our risk
matrix — for us, it's just the more assiduous application of it.
In terms of reviewing if the documentation of the way they’re
doing the risk assessment is providing value, both externally
and internally — yes. 1 think these documents have to be
living documents. This is something that Finance does often
and that our senior management team will definitely put on
the agenda — this risk assessment matrix — both to ensure
that, of course, we continue to adhere and implement 100
percent, but also exactly to the question — six months from
now, we'll discuss if there are some changes we should make
1o our reference guide and the actual risk assessment. So we
will do that.

Mr. Mills: Again, with regard to societies, we have a
small number of funding agreements with those societies. One
of the things we have done already is to try to make it a bit
more effective, and also allow these societies 1o adequately
plan, is to try to look at two- or three-year types of
commitments to these societies so they can make proper
planning. It improves the relationship.

We’re constantly reviewing how we approach these and
we could definitely realize that we need to reach out and talk
about — including to the people we’re providing funding to
— to look at a review.

Mr. Hutton: [ would like to thank all the staff members
for being here this morning, You’ll be happy to know that 1
have only a couple of very easy questions for Community
Services,

The Auditor General's report suggested that Community
Services should put mechanisms in place to systematically
review government transfers to determine and document
whether their goals and objectives have been met. The
department’s response notes it will require recipients to
complete a final evaluation to document whether the
objectives of the program or project have been met. The
department will also require program officers to complete a
post-assessment report to confirm that the objectives of the
program or project have been met.

What measures has CS taken to ensure all funding
recipients complete a final evaluation to document whether
the objectives of the program or project have been met as part
of the agreement’s final deliverables?

Mr. Moore: Community Services requires recipients to
complete a final report. As others have noted, we have in the
past. The point has been that it hasn’t always been done. What
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we have done is create an accountability reporting form that is
part of the agreement file. In that document, our program
officers would then assess whether or not the objectives were
met at the end of the agreement by looking at what we have
actually identified prior to signing off the agreement as to
what the mandate items and business plan objectives were at
the outset and then measuring against that at the conclusion of
the agreement.

Again, tying that into some of the earlier discussion —
being more up-front and being more explicit about what the
expectations are will actually help that process when we know
what we are reporting against at the end. That agreement itself
includes linking to specific goals and identifying what we
need to do through that, using that consistent template across
all of the agreements that we have.

Mr. Hutton: Your program officers ensure that the
funding recipients have completed their final evaluations and
the next step is your program officers complete a post-
assessment report. How do you confirm that that gets
completed? Is that just standard?

Mr. Moore: The form itself, the accountability
reporting — we are actually looking at interim reporting steps
and at final reporting, which includes reporting against the
objectives. We have to check boxes about geiting signed
financial statements, identifying all revenue sources and other
reporting requirements that will be required of the society and
then laying out very clearly how and what objectives were
met. That is one form that we have not fully created. We have
worked on all the intake portions of it. Because many of our
agreements run from April of this year to March 31, 2018, that
is currently what we are working on, so we will have more
systematically defined what that reporting template will look
like before the end of this fiscal year lo use once we are
evaluating them at the end of this fiscal year. That is what |
was referring to — by early 2018 — that we will have that
form ready to have that methodical approach to close off those
agreements.

Mr. Hassard: Are there any other follow-up questions
from any members of the Committee?

Thank you very much to all of the witnesses for your time
here today. We will recess until 1:30 p.m., at which time we
will reconvene with Department of Finance and Executive
Council Office.

Recess

Mr. Hassard: 1 will now call to order this hearing of
the Standing Committee on Public Accounts of the Yukon
Legislative Assembly. Today the Committee is investigating
the Auditor General of Canada’s report entitled Report of the
Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly

2017: Government Transfers to Societies — Yukon. As this
report deals with multiple departments, the witnesses are
appearing in two panels today. This morning, we heard from
witnesses from the Department of Community Services, the
Department of Economic Development, as well as the
Department of Energy, Mines and Resources.

I would now like to thank the witnesses from the
Department of Finance as well as the Executive Council
Office for appearing this afterncon. [ believe the deputy
ministers — or acting deputy ministers, in some cases — will
introduce the witnesses during their opening remarks.

Also present with us today are officials from the Auditor
General's office: Michael Ferguson, the Auditor General of
Canada, and with him is Casey Thomas, principal.

1 am the Chair of the Committee, Stacey Hassard, and the
MLA for Pelly-Nisutlin. To my left is Paolo Gallina, the
Commiltee’s Vice-Chair and Member for Porter Creek Centre.
To his left is Liz Hanson, Member for Whitehorse Centre. To
her left is Ted Adel, Member for Copperbelt Narth, and on the
far left is Brad Cathers, Member for Lake Laberge, who is
substituting for Committee member Wade Istchenko, who is
unable to be here today. Finally, behind me, is Don Hutton,
Member for Mayo-Tatchun.

The Public Accounts Committee is an all-party commitlee
with a mandate to ensure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in public spending — in other words,
accountability for the use of public funds. The purpose of this
public hearing is to address issues of the implementation of
policies, whether programs are being effectively and
efficiently delivered, and not to question the policies of
Government of Yukon. In other words, our task is not to
challenge the government policy but to examine its
implementation. The resuits of our deliberations will be
reported back to the Legislalive Assembly.

To begin this afternoon’s proceedings, the deputy
ministers or acting deputy ministers will be invited to make
opening slatements on behall of their departments, and
Committee members will then ask questions. As is the
Commitiee’s practice, the members devise and compile the
questions collectively, We then divide them up among the
members, and the questions that each member will ask are not
their personal questions on a particular subject but those of the
entire Committee.

Afier the hearing, the Committee will prepare a report of
its proceedings, including any recommendations that the
Committee wishes to make. This report will be tabled in the
Legislative Assembly.

Before we resume the hearing, | would ask that questions
and answers be kept brief and to the point so that we may deal
with as many issues as possible in the time allotted for this
hearing. 1 would also ask that Committec members, witnesses
and officials from the Office of the Auditor General wail until
they are recognized by the Chair before speaking, as this will
keep the discussion more orderly and allow those listening on
the radio or over the Intemnet to know who is speaking.

We will now proceed with opening remarks from
Ms. Muir.

Ms. Muir: Thank you and good afternoon, Mr. Chair
and Committee members. My name is Pamela Muir. 1 am the
acting deputy minister of the Executive Council Office.
Mr. Connell, the deputy minister, is currently out of the
territory. With me is Jeananne Nicloux, also a Cabinet policy
analyst with the Executive Council Office.
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We're pleased to be here today to speak to ECO’s role in
relation to the performance audit carried out by the Auditor
General on government transfers to societies. Government
transfers to various bodies and organizations are an important
public policy tool to advance delivery of programs and
services to citizens. ECO is of the view that having an
appropriate and effective policy framework to guide the work
of departments in relation to such transfers is essential.

As a central agency, one of the key responsibilities of
ECO is supporting the Cabinet governance process by
ensuring that government policy and planning are coordinated
and effective.

It’s also responsible for maintaining and disseminating
corporate portions of the General Administration Manual,
referred to as the GAM, which comprise various internal
policies and procedures.

[ do think it is fair to say that, as government is evolving,
there is a new collaborative relationship between ECO and the
Department of Finance. While ECO maintains its overall
responsibility for supporting Cabinet governance and
coordinated policy and planning and decision-making across
government, Finance is actively now taking the lead for
corporate financial matters, and Executive Council Office and
Finance are working closely to provide leadership on
oversight on these matters in order to support effective and
financially sound government decision-making. That is a new
relationship that we are very happy to have.

As you will know, there are two recommendations in the
audit report that relate to ECO. These are recommendations 31
and 84. Just by way of brief background, as [ am sure
Committee members are all aware of this, an NGO funding
policy was approved in 1998 to guide decision-making
processes for funding to non-government citizen groups
engaged in delivering community services and programs. That
was one of the GAM policies that ECO was responsible for
administering.

Following the 2007 report of the internal audit — Report
on the Audit of Contributions by the government internal
services branch — the Department of Finance created the
government transfers policy in section 5.9 of the Financial
Administration Manual — FAM. So that policy is more
detailed than the 1998 NGO policy was, and it covered
transfers to all societies, not just NGOs.

As pointed out by the Office of the Auditor General in
their report, there are some contradictions between the two
policies — between the NGO funding policy and the
government transfers policy — and it related primarily to
some definitions and certain types of funding that is permitted,
related primarily to operational or core funding.

In  recommendation 31, the Auditor General
recommended that Finance and ECO work together to resolve
these contradictions, and while the older NGO funding policy
has not really been an active source of guidance as it was
superseded by the Finance policy, ECO acknowledges that
these contradictions need to be resolved.

As laid out in the status update and work plan dated June
12 that was provided to the Committee, ECO and Finance

have completed a detailed comparison of the two policies and
have agreed that the way to reconcile the contradictions is that
the NGO funding policy be revoked in its entirety and that the
government transfers policy be amended to clarify some of the
concepts that the Auditor General noted needed some
clarification. We expect that work will be done by the fall of
this year.

With respect to recommendation 84, at the time the
government transfers policy was approved in 2008, it was
anticipated at that time that there would be a corporate
program evaluation policy put in place in response to the 2007
internal audit. As a result, that policy is actually referred to in
5.9, the government transfers policy.

While ECO certainly supports the concept of evaluation
and work has been undertaken on a corporate policy, that
policy was never established, for various reasons including
capacity and resources,

In its response to recommendation 84, ECO indicates its
agreement that an evaluation policy that supports a results-
based approach to managing government transfers should be
created and, as indicated in our work plan and update, ECO
and Finance have determined that the policy guidance for
evaluating government transfers should reside with Finance.
Officials will recommend that the government transfers policy
be amended to include this. It is expected that this work will
be undertaken over the next year or so with a target of
finalizing a policy in the fall of 2018 with implementation and
training to follow.

I did just want to make a couple of comments about
program evaluations specifically. While there hasn’t been a
corporate program evaluation policy established, there has
been work ongoing in government in relation to that important
concept. As mentioned, the government transfers policy will
be amended to include evaluation criteria. The Department of
Finance will speak to this but, as part of its reorganization,
they will be adding an evaluation unit. There are many
instances in the FAM or GAM policies where evaluation
activities are referenced. There is some legislation that
mandates evaluation of policies, and there have been past
interdepartmental working groups to discuss and look at
evaluation frameworks. There has been training for public
servants on evaluation skills. While we acknowledge that
there is lots of work still to do on the concept of evaluation
generally, there has been some progress on this element of
government decision-making.

In conclusion, and as noted in the report, ECO agrees
with the recommendations 31 and 84, and work is actively
underway by ECO and Finance to address the
recommendations.

Ms. White: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and members of
the Commitiee, My name is Katherine White, and 1 am the
Deputy Minister of Finance. Accompanying me today are
Clarke LaPrairie, the assistant deputy minister of Financial
Operations and Revenue Services, and Tina Frisch, our
Comptroller.

We are pleased 1o appear before the Public Accounts
Committee to respond to the performance audit conducted by
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the Office of the Auditor General of Canada on government
transfers to societies. Government transfers, as mentioned, are
an important public policy tool used to advance delivery of
government programs and services. Government transfers
totalled just over $340 million, or approximately 28 percent of
all expenses in 2015-16 — our last fully andited financial
statements.

As stated in the audit report received for the period
covered by the audit, transfers to societies represented
approximately 12 percent of all transfers at roughly $40
million annually. The Department of Finance is pleased with
the conclusion that the department is conducting sufficient
monitoring to identify and report on matters of non-
compliance. We are also pleased by the fact that the audit only
yielded one recommendation for the department, although we
will be assisting on two. We are currently in the process of
addressing that recommendation and the second that we will
be following up on.

We see these facts as a testament or affirmation that our
past efforts in regard to managing transfers have had positive
impacts. In comparing this audit with the 2007 internal audit
on contributions that the Office of the Auditor General
references, the difference is startling. That audit had 59
recommendations, many of which were quite serious in
nature. There is often a common theme with internal or
performance audits. These audits often identify that there are
areas of non-compliance with various policies or procedures,
not because of malicious intent, but because of systematic root
causes in areas such as lack of clarity of policy direction,
inadequate systems and reporting tools and/or poor training.

After the 2007 report, the Department of Finance created
the transfer payment policy that resides in section 5.9 of the
Financial Administration Manual — the FAM. The policy
was written partly to address issues found in the 2007 internal
audit. The policy incorporated best practices of the day, which
at the time were articulated in the themes contained in the
2006 Independent Blue Ribbon Panel on Grant and
Contribution Programs created by the federal government of
the day.

Working with the Department of Justice, we created
standardized transfer payment forms and terms and
conditions, Working with the Department of Highways and
Public Works, we created a centralized system to create and
host those transfer payment documents. The system has
improved the depariment’s ability to manage, track and report
on matters related to transfer payments. These efforts have
paid dividends. We have seen greater consistency in the
application of the transfer policy than existed prior to these
changes. That said, we do recognize that there is still some
work to be done.

As a central agency, we have a critical role to support line
departments in their efforts to run their programs. We'll be
recommending amendments to FAM 5.9 to provide clarity on
terms identified in this audit as confusing, such as what it
means for a society 1o be in good standing. We will also
provide guidance regarding evaluation criteria for transfers.

Finally, 1 would like to take this opportunity to mention
part of our department’s reorganization. As 1 mentioned,
audits such as this one often identify issues or problems that
have root causes in either lack of clarity with respect to policy
or deficiencies in training. That is why, as part of our
restructuring, we are narrowing the scope of the comptrolier’s
office — in part, to allow for more focus on financial policies,
whether contained in the Financial Administration Manual,
directives, regulations, or the Financial Administration Act
itself. Additionally, this more focused comptroller’s office
will have added resources to provide guidance and training on
financial processes and procedures government-wide.

In addition to the changes to the comptrolier’s office
designed 1o improve policy, processes and procedures, we will
be adding an evaluation unit in the Economics, Fiscal Policy
and Statistics branch of the department. There are still many
details to work out with respect to establishing an evaluation
unit. What 1 can say now is that, while this unit will not be
solely focused on transfer payments, we expect the capacity
that will be developed by the formation of this unit will enable
departments to better fulfill their responsibilities to implement
resulis-based programs. In other words, the evaluation unit
should complement the efforts of the comptroller’s office to
help address the key findings contained in this performance
audit. We agree that application of policy should be consistent
and that effective systems and practices support good
management of government transfers. We have made
significant progress in these areas in the past, but we accept
that there is still a lot of work to be done and we are
committed to undertaking that work.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Chair: At this time, we’ll move into the question
portion.

As the Office of the Auditor General examined policies
regarding government transfers to societies, they found in
paragraph 20 of the report that “... the policies for managing
government transfers to societies contained concepts that were
contradictory or undefined.” While the Government of Yukon
raised contradictions in terminology as an issue in its 2007
internal audit, the OAG reported in paragraph 20 that this
issue had not been resolved. Could you tell the Committee
why so much time elapsed without corrections being made?

Ms. Muir: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. I think, as was
mentioned, the 2007 audit report had a number of
recommendations in it.

Since that time, 50 of the 59 recommendations have been
addressed. There was a focus on that. As well, the
contradictions between the NGO policy and the government
transfers policy — we were of the view that the NGO policy
was superseded by the financial policy and really wasn’t a
guidance tool, bul recognize that removing the contradiction is
what should be done, and that’s what we’ll be recommending.
I think the focus was on getting the govermnment transfers
policy in place and working. That’s the reason why.

Chair: Can you tell us what action is typically taken
following internal audits?



1-18

STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBL!IC ACCOUNTS

June 28, 2017

Ms. Muir: Following an internal audit, the departments
that participated in the audit have an opportunity to review the
audit report and provide what we call a “management
response” to each recommendation made in the internal audit
report. That management response can accept the
recommendation, provide a context to the issue or provide
other sorts of information that the department feels is relevant.
Then the deputy minister who signs the management response
attends the audit committee, which is established under our
internal audit policy, to present the management response and
make commitments to implement recommendations by a
certain date. The report, including the management response,
is then posted on the Government of Yukon website. That's
typically what happens.

Chair: Thank you. And do you feel that those steps
were taken in regard to this internal audit?

Ms. Muir: As | understand it, that was done. The audit
was posted. The follow-up reporting on the audit, the second
phase of the internal audit, was done in, I believe, 2010 and
was posted. As I said, 50 of the 59 recommendations in the
internal audit report were acted upon, so that was where the
focus was but there are these remaining items that will be
attended to.

Chair: Can you also tell us how progress on internal
audit’s recommendations is tracked?

Ms. Muir: Once a report is approved by the audit
committee, the internal branch — the internal audit report —
follows up on the implementation of the recommendations
twice a year until the due date. They make regular reports to
the audit committee on internal audits to provide information
about how well government is doing against its own
yardsticks. As I mentioned, there was a 2010 follow-up report
on the government internal audit report on the contribution
agreements report.

Follow-up audits — they do involve two phases. Phase |
is usually carried out about a year afier the report, where the
internal auditor gathers information on the status of the
corrective actions, and then phase 2 is two years or more
afterward with a follow-up report, and that’s what happened in
this case. The 2010 report was the follow-up report.

Mr. Gallina: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you to
the department officials who have joined us here today.

The two policies that departments use for government
transfers to fund societies are the 1998 NGO funding policy in
the General Administration Manual and the 2008 government
transfers policy in the Financial Administration Manual. 1In
paragraph 31, the OAG recommended that the Department of
Finance and the Executive Council Office should work
together and consult with other departments as necessary to
review the 1998 NGO funding policy in the General
Administration Manual and the 2008 government transfers
policy in the Financial Administration Mannal. They should
resolve contradictions in the policies and define key policy
concepts.

So has Finance and the Executive Council Office
reviewed the 1998 NGO funding policy and the 2008

government transfers policy to identify contradictions and
define key policy concepts?

Ms. Muir: Yes, that work has been done. [t was done in
April. It was completed in April.

Mr. Gallina: Can you elaborate on the review that took
place in identifying the contradictions and defining the key
policies?

Ms. Muir: Yes, officials from ECO and the Department
of Finance did a detailed review of the two policies — sort of
a side-by-side kind of review — to identify where there were
contradictions, where there was overlap, et cetera, and the
determination was made that the best course of action was to
recommend that the NGO policy — the older policy — be
revoked in its entirety and that some amendments be made to
the government transfers policy to clarify the definition —
things like what “good standing™ means and that sort of thing
— and to clarify the contradictions around what cperational
funding is, what core funding is, and when they can be used.

Mr. Gallina: Ms. Muir, in your opening slatements,
you talked about this new collaborative relationship between
ECO and the Department of Finance. | wanted to know more
on how the effectiveness of this evolving relationship will be
measured. Can you speak to that?

Ms, Muir: Well, that's a good question. | suppose in
any number of ways — through sound, financial management
according to clear policies, and things like government
planning for activities, which will be tied to budget cycles,
and so Finance and ECO are working closely on that front.
Those are two immediate examples that come to mind.

Ms. Hanson: So we're going to go back to paragraph
31, which, as we know, was where — as Mr. Gallina pointed
out — the Department of Finance and Executive Council
Office agreed they should work together and consult with
other departments as necessary to review the 1998 NGO
funding policy in the General Administration Manual and the
2008 government transfer policy in the Financial
Administration Manual. They should resolve contradictions in
the policies and define key policy concepts.

Both of you have agreed to that. We've heard from
Ms. Muir that the review was done and completed in April of
this year. Ms. White, you said that the target of finalizing a
policy for the povernment transfers policy is still the fall of
2018. 1 guess our question is: Is this adequate? It was in the
response from the Department of Finance to the Auditor
General: “We anticipate that this initiative will be completed
by November 2018, subject to how it is prioritized in relation
to other initiatives.”

My question is: Is this adequate and does it imply that the
Department of Finance may decide not to do it by next
November 20187

Ms. White: | thank the member for the question. The
Department of Finance does believe that the target of
November 2018 is sufficient time to address the
recommendations found in paragraph 31, namely, to resolve
contradictions in the policies and to define key policy
concepts. As was mentioned in the opening remarks, the
transfer payment policy has generally worked well, with a few
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exceptions — the main exception being the conflict with the
General Administration Manual policy related to NGO
funding. This conflict will disappear by repealing that
outdated policy and the report points out a few areas where
definitions could be clearer, such as: What does it mean for a
society to be in good standing? These issues can be dealt with
in the suggested timeline.

The language about priorities just reflects the decision-
making processes of government. Typically it is the
departments’ public servants who respond to performance
audits, but ultimately it is the government that must direct
priorities. So at the time, the deputy ministers were making
timing-based commitments. We were anticipating a territorial
election may or may not result in a change in government, so
the language simply reflects the need to recognize the new
priorities of an incoming government.

| do want to reaffirm that the Executive Council Office
and the Department of Finance are commitied to
implementing the recommendations of the audit within the
time committed. However, certain aspects of implementing
the recommendations of the audit require Cabinet and
Management Board approvali and cannot be completed
independently by the departments.

Ms. Hanson: Thank you for that. In the development of
the new policy work, is it the intention — the outcome of that
— is it an incorporation of the 1998 policy into the 2008 —
into making one policy? So it is being incorporated to create a
2008.2 or whatever, or what is it?

Ms, White: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It is our intention to
beef up, if you will, the FAM 5.9 policy — so to only have
one policy remaining — and | don’t want to add a point-
anything on because there is actually quite a number of
subsections in that policy. But it would be, as you described,
transfer policy 2.0, if you would, yes.

Ms. Hanson: Ms. White, you said in your opening
statements that in working with the Department of Justice, the
Department of Finance created standardized transfer payment
forms and terms and conditions, and created a centralized
system to create and host those transfer payment documents.
That was to improve — or the system has — so it is past tense
— improved departments’ ability to manage, track and report
on matters related to transfer payments,

So my question is: What oversight role has the
Department of Finance played with EMR, Community
Services and Economic Development as they have developed
their response to the Auditor General’s report? This moming,
we heard a lot about risk assessments. We saw piles of forms
being developed independently in departments. There is an
understanding that they are in compliance with the transfer
payment management system.

What role has the Department of Finance played in the
development by those departments of their responses to the
Auditor General's recommendations?

Ms. White: We have reviewed the checklist, the
decision trees and the guidance documents that the three
departments have developed independently to ensure that they
comply the best way they can with the FAM 5.9, and that is

our standard practice. We are happy to review any additional
measures that departments put in place, as the three
departments the member mentioned have done. We do plan on
taking the results and reviewing how those are working with
the three departments in addition to any additional external
guidance that may come from the federal government, as it
did before with the blue-ribbon panel report or any other
external or internal group, and look to provide more policy
clarity, as we have committed to by the fall of 2018, on
evaluation criteria. We have reviewed all those checklists and
decision trees to ensure, in our view, that they do comply with
FAM 5.9, the overarching transfers policy.

Mr, Adel: Welcome everyone — good to see you here
today. 1 have some questions for Finance and for ECO. I'll
start with Finance.

You'll have to bear with me — some of this might be a
little bit repetitive, but that’s just what we’re here to do. How
has Finance worked with the depariments to creale a
government transfer agreement checklist and self-assessment
worksheet for staff to use? I'm not talking about the
overarching — 1I’m saying, okay, do this, do this, do this — is
that the type of approach you took, or was it just, see what
they gave you and make recommendations?

Ms. White: Thank you for the question. Our Policy and
Compliance unit in Finance does spend a considerable amount
of time and effort trying to assist depariments in ensuring they
can administer a corporate policy, such as the government
transfers policy, in a fashion that addresses the unique needs
of each department and their programs. To your specific
question, we reviewed what they came up with, because the
policy is quite clear that departments are responsible for
implementing their own policy, and we don’t tend to take an
overarching, top-down method, but we do work in a
collaborative manner with departments to ensure what they
come up with is compliant.

Therefore, there are several departmental checklists, as
you heard this morning, that we have assisted in the
development of. We do have a system for showing transfer
payments that is fully integrated into our financial systems,
Concurrent to the policy work we are undertaking, we will
explore the feasibility of incorporating some of this
functionality into a corporale system. Where things have
commonality — like we heard in the checklists that were used
this morning — we would look at embedding that right into
the system, because that can sometimes be preferable to stand-
alone worksheets, and you can’t proceed if the system doesn’t
let you unless you have fulfilled those requirements.

What we don’t want to do is cause an undue burden on
departments or, ultimately, Yukoners who are the recipients of

the services provided for by these transfer payment
agreements.
Mr., Adel: What is the status of working with ECO to

conduct an internal scoping of the possible changes and
approach?

Ms. White; We have submitted our work plan to the
Public Accounts Committee. As was stated earlier, 1 think it
clearly indicates our initial scoping.
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For the record, we have identified the phased approach
allowing for quick wins, if you will. First, Finance and ECO
expect to recommend to Cabinet to revoke the GAM 1.16, the
NGO funding policy that was referenced earlier that conflicts
with FAM 5.9, the transfer policy. This will obviously
eliminate any conflicts and make it clear that transfers to
societies should follow the same rules and procedures as all
government transfers. In roughly the same timeline, we’ll
recommend to Management Board revisions to the transfer
payment policy that will clarify the key concepts that were
identified in the Auditor General's report as being ambiguous
to some. Afier that, we expect roughly a year or more of
comprehensive work to identify how evaluation policy can
incorporate a more robust results-based approach.

Mr. Adel: Last question — it will just be a short one,
because I think we’ve covered a lot of it. You said the status
of work being done to policy changes in the development of
the implementation plan will be fall of 2018, you anticipate?

Ms. White: For clarity, we have committed that, by fall
2018, we will have resolved all the conflicts mentioned and
we’ll have recommended that the GAM be revoked, yes,

Mr. Adel: We'll move over to ECO. What is the status
of the work being done to conduct an initial scope of possible
changes in approach?

Ms. Muir: That work — the initial scoping has been
done and it was completed in April.

Mr. Adel: What is the status of consultations on where
the evaluation function for this policy will reside?

Ms. Muir: The consultations are complete and the
decision has been made at the departmental level that it will
be in Finance.

Mr. Adel: What is the status of any policy changes in
the development and implementation of the plan?

Ms. Muir: The policy changes to the NGO policy will
be recommended by the fall — the revocation of that policy.
At that time, it's hoped that some early changes to the FAM
will be recommended to Management Board to clarify some
key concepts. Then, within a year following that, amendments
to the FAM to deal with the evaluation piece will be done. So
it’s that sort of phased approach Ms, White referenced.

Mr. Cathers: Thank you to all of you for coming here
this afterocon. [ have a few questions. You’ve answered some
already so I’'m going to skip a couple of questions here.

There was reference in the Auditor General's — a
reference in paragraph 75 — noting that the Department of
Community Services didn’t always assess and document
whether objectives of transfers had been met, and it also noted
the Executive Council Office has not developed a corporate
evaluation policy to allow departments to measure results at
the program level.

Now, if 1 understand correctly — and please confirm for
the record that I'm correct in understanding what you stated
earlier — 1 understand that initial work on an evaluation
policy and scoping out the work plan for development of that
was done by April | of this year and you plan to implement
that then by November 2018.

[s that correct? If so, can you advise whether the work
plan itself has received or requires Cabinet approval?

Ms, White: [ can confirm that the member’s statements
are correct. We do intend to implement an evaluation policy
by fall 2018. So all recommendations by fall 2018 will be
contained in the Department of Finance, and yes, would
require Management Board and/or Cabinet approval.

Mr. Cathers: | had a question just following up on the
question of Mr. Adel. So the location of the evaluation
function for this policy — I understand that you’ve indicated
the decision has been made at a departmental level of where
you would like to see the evaluation function housed — that
being in the Department of Finance. Does that decision still
require approval by Cabinet and/or Management Board before
it's finalized or have you received confirmation that that
indeed will be where it is located?

Ms. White: Thank you for the question. We have
received confirmation from Management Board and Cabinet
that the evaluation function will reside in Finance. That was
done through the budget for 2017-18. Some of the new
positions that were debated in the Legislature in the
Department of Finance are for this evaluation unit that will be
housed in the department.

Mr. Cathers: [ understand that there is still some work
outlined under the work plan that you referenced but are you
able to give us any more information at this point in time
about what the key elements of a results-based approach 1o
evaluating government transfers are fikely to be?

Ms. White: Thank you for the question, The key
elements are actually at a very high level — not sufficiently
— but are at a very high level articulated in FAM 5.9.5.2
which is titled “Results-based, risk-based and citizen focused
approach.” It outlines the elements of a risk-based approach
such as setting clear responsibilities, clear and logical design
and a sound performance measurement plan. The opening
statement clearly indicates the key expectations — and 1|
quete: “Departments much use a results-based and risk-based
management approach in designing a transfer payment
program and drafting a transfer payment agreement, while
adopting a citizen-focused approach to managing programs
and individual funding agreements.”

So at a very high level, those will remain the elements.
What remains outstanding is additional clarification and
puidance to be developed to assist departments in meeting
these very high-level requirements. At this point, we do still
plan on maintaining those very high-level elements, but
fleshing out for the departments — what those look like —
and working with some of the changes that have been
implemented by three of the early adopters that you heard this
morning of a more stringent results-based approach,

Performance measurement will certainly be a key element
of that, and creating clear objectives will also be a key
element. It is very hard to measure whether you have met your
objectives if the objectives were not clear to start with.

Mr. Cathers: Am | correct in understanding that the
plan to amend 5.9 — subject of course to Cabinet approval —
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is to put in place additional performance measures within that
structure?

Secondly, if that is correct, is there — at this point in time
where 1 may be getting further ahead than you have gotten in
terms of planning — but are you envisioning the policy
evaluating performance differently for the different types of
NGOs? What | am referring to primarily is that it seems to me
that there are three basic types of NGO funding agreements. [
am blending together the wide range of categories, but there
are some areas where government has an ongoing annual
funding agreement with service delivery NGOs. 1 will give
examples of that — of organizations like Challenge, Many
Rivers, Kaushee's Place, Help and Hope — those types of
entities that, while the funding agreements themselves in some
cases may require annual approval, the nature of
government’s relationship with those NGOs tends to be one of
an ongoing service.

The second main category that strikes me in terms of
government funding for NGOs is those that may be frequent
or repeat but are not necessarily an ongoing service delivery
relationship — or perhaps [ should amend that first category
to note service delivery includes things like ongoing
contributions to sporting entities.

The third category that | would personally classify it into
would be then those more one-time agreements that might
occur more than once, but are effectively a one-off project
application or a funding application through measures such as
CDF.

Circling back, my question after that fairly long
explanation is: Are you envisioning the policy evaluating
those transfer agreements and contracts differently because of
either the categories [ listed or some other classification or
largely evaluating them all in the same sort of manner despite
differences between those categories?

Ms. White:  Again, | will thank you for the question.
You have articulated the challenge in having a corporate
policy that applies to small, medium, large and everything in
between quite well. We don’t envision having departments
use standard performance indicators or standard policy as a
one-size-fits-all solution. We have what we would call a
“principle based™ policy in the transfer payment policy. As
you have identified, there is no one indicator that can range
with — you know, activities that range from hosting an event
to client-focused services.

So what we would be looking at now would be giving
guidance in these types of situations. We hadn’t broken it
down in exactly the way that has been identified, but certainly
the complexity of the transfer payment agreement, which is |
think what you were alluding to, with the three categories is
something that we will consider in developing that policy and
providing additional guidance to departments, because it is not
our intention to add more bureaucratic paperwork to
ourselves, (o our partners in departments or to the societies to
benefit from funding and, in tumn, provide services or other
activilies for Yukoners at large,

We would certainly be looking at varying levels of
complexity in terms of measurement, not unlike what you

heard from Community Services this morning in their
checklist, where they look at many of the elements that you
described in your question, sir. We are not planning on
coming with a top-down “thou shalt™ in all circumstances. We
are planning on having something that is flexible enough to
work for all departments going forward.

Ms. Hanson: Thank you, Mr. Chair. [ just have a two-
part follow-up with respect to the response that was given
when the question was asked about the status of policy
changes and development and implementation of plans.

This afiernoon, in the opening remarks, we heard that
government transfers totalled over $340 million — about 20
percent of the budget — and 12 percent of all transfers are to
societies, equalling about $40 million. So ! look at the audit,
which was tabled in the Legislature in March 2017, and
knowing that departments — the Department of Finance and
ECO — responsible for these overarching policies have
worked with the Auditor General for a number of months
preceding that and have agreed to these recommendations
many months before the report was tabled, my question is:
Why does it take 20 months from when it is tabled to actually
see a resulting policy? Twenty months — so if you go
backward, we're 1alking about numerous years by then. So
that is one question and the second part of that question:
Given that November 2018 is the target now, as stated and
agreed to, what is the target for rolling out the actual
implementation plan and the commencement of training on
this new policy?

Ms. White:  All phases of the recommendations will be
completed by fall 2018. The first phase — and | apologize for
my lack of clarity in my previous answer — as my colleague,
Pamela Muir, has stated, will be completed this fall. So the
first phase of eliminating the duplication and providing some
clarity of definitions will be done by this fall and the
evaluation policy will be the following fall. One of the reasons
that it takes so [ong is that it does take a little bit longer to
develop a robust policy and test it than it does to do the initial
phases of the work plan that we have indicated.

As [ said in my opening statement, we tried to take a
phased approach that would pick up the low-hanging fruit first
and get rid of the contradictions.

As has come through in many of the questions so far, the
evaluation policy is rather complex because we are dealing
with everything from hosting an event to maybe providing
counselling services to folks. The other major project that we
have happening in the Department of Finance is the
reorganizalion that will address some of the concemns that
have been identified. One of the reasons for the timing delay
is also to build and gain support for that reorganization and to
ensure government was on board with that plan moving
forward.

Mr. Cathers: 1 just have a follow-up question on that,
in thinking of the types of transfers. [ don’t know if I'm
asking a question that you may not have gotten to the stage of
being able to answer, but when it comes to an evaluation
policy for transfers, how do you foresee evaluating the success
of a contribution to an NGO that originates from a political
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commitment? For example, hosting the Arctic Winter Games,
which is primarily a political-level decision, or I'll give an
example of one that — we, prior to the last mandate, had
made a specific commitment to increase funding for the
Fireweed Community Market. How do you set in place useful
evaluation criteria to determine whether the objective has been
met when the decision was based on a platform or other
political commitment made by government?

Ms. White: Regardless of the source of the
commitment or what started the initial dialogue with the
society that will be carrying out whatever function is deemed
appropriate between the two parties, the objectives have to be
worked out between the public service and the transfer
payment agreement recipient. The way that we envision
holding to account, or evaluating whether the objectives have
been met, is by being very clear about what those objectives
are as we sign, or as we ink, the transfer payment agreement,
if you will.

It would be unacceptable in a transfer payment spot check
if the Department of Finance found political commitment in
the objective line. That would not be sufficient to meet the
FAM 5.9 criteria. Again, just to be clear on the answer, it’s
through clear objectives contained in the actual funding
agreement that we’re able to evaluate the success of the
transfer payment,

Mr. Hutton: My colleapues have done such an
excellent job asking questions, and the witnesses across have
done a marvellous job of answering them, that all the
questions | had have been answered at this point. Thank you
very much for your appearance here this afternoon.

Chair: Are there any other questions from any other
Committee members?

With that, 1 will thank you very much for your time here
today. 1 appreciale your work and honesty in answering the
questions. We will reconvene tomorrow morning at 10:00.
Thank you very much,

The Committee adjourned at 2:23 p.m
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INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to provide a status report for the Department of Community Services' progress on
the 2017 March Report of the Auditor General of Canada on Government Transfers to Societies.

The audit contained three recommendations for Community Services. Community Services' responses were
included in the final audit report which contained commitments that would be in place by April 1%, 2017. In all
cases, the Department has met the commitments and addressed the recommendations in the audit.
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THE POLICIES FOR MANAGING GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS CONTAINED CONTRADICTIONS
AND UNDEFINED CONCEPTS

OFFICE OF AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT:

What we found

20. We found that the policies for managing government transfers to societies contained concepts that were
contradictory or undefined.

21. Our analysis supporting this finding presents what we examined and discusses

s core versus operational funding, and

s Good standing.

25. Core versus operational funding. Department officials must consult both the 1998 NGO Funding Policy
and the 2008 Government Transfers Policy when deciding to fund a society. According to both policies, the
government can provide operational funding to societies. However, we found that the policies described different
activities that qualified for operational funding. The 1998 policy states that to receive government funding for
general or “operational” purposes, societies must specify the project, service, or function that will be performed
as a result. The 2008 policy defines operational funding more broadly—as funding that is directed to an
organization's operations as a whole rather than to particular projects, or that supports a particular program,
department, or division within an organization. The discrepancy between the narrow definition in the 1998 policy
and the broader definition in the 2008 policy may cause confusion about the types of activities that operational
funding can support.

31. Recommendation. The Department of Finance and the Executive Council Office should work together—
and consult with other departments, as necessary—to review the 1988 NGO Funding Policy in the General
Administration Manual and the 2008 Government Transfers Policy in the Financial Administration Manual. They
should resolve contradictions in the policies and define key policy concepts.

COMMUNITY SERVICES UPDATE:

25 Core versus operational funding:
Although the recommendation didn't specifically address Community Services within the recommendation; our
department has addressed “Core versus operational funding”.

In practice Community Services follows chapter 5.9, Government Transfers, of the Financial Administration
Manual when creating and managing Transfer Payment Agreements (TPAs). The term “Operational Funding”
is used more often than “core funding”. Although, there were some older agreements with the term “core
funding”, all new agreements are creating using the term “operational funding”.

A four month review process (June — September 2016) of all new TPAs was conducted to identify whether the
agreements captured the correctly scope of work to meet the definition of operational funding needs (versus
project funding).

Community Services has newly created a SharePoint site to assist officers within the Department with financial,
contracting and administration operations. Standardized templates, forms, tips and tricks, and processes are
found there which provides staff with a consistent resource when creating and administering TPAs (among a
myriad of other things.) Additionally, a systematic review of TPAs will be implemented department wide.
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DEPARTMENTS DID NOT ALWAYS COMPLY WITH KEY POLICY REQUIREMENTS

QFFICE OF AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT:

What we found

32. We found that the departments did not always comply with key policy requirements.
33, Our analysis supporting this finding presents what we examined and discusses
 installments and advance payments,

verification of legal reporting requirements,

outstanding debt,

government transfers versus contracts, and

other expense” classification.

37. Installments and advance payments. The 2008 Government Transfers Policy states that government
transfers are to be made with due regard for both the government's cash management practices and the
recipient’s cash flow requirements. This means that departments cannot always pay a society the full amount
of the transfer up front, but must instead follow the policy guidelines, which can require multiple payments.

39. The sample included 31 government transfers in which advance payments were considered necessary
to fund a specific project. We found that in 28 of these cases, the advance payments complied with policy or
program guidelines. We found that advance payments did not meet the relevant guidelines in 1 government
transfer provided by the Department of Economic Development, and in 2 government transfers provided by
the Department of Community Services.

40. Verification of legal reporting requirements. The 2008 Government Transfers Policy states that before
deciding to fund a society, a department should consult the Registrar, verify the organization’s correct legal
name, and ensure that the organization is in good standing. However, as noted in paragraph 30, the policy
does not define the term "good standing.” The Department of Finance told us that being in good standing
means that a society is in compliance with all reporting requirements laid out under the Societies Act and its
regulations.

42. For 38 of the 53 government transfers we sampled, we found no documentation indicating that before
the departments decided to provide the transfers, they had verified with the Registrar that societies were in
compliance with legal reporting requirements:

For the Department of Community Services, we found no evidence for any of the 34 government transfers
we examined that the Department had verified that the societies were in compliance with their lega! reporting
requirements.

44, Outstanding debt. The 2008 Government Transfers Policy states that departments must determine
whether prospective recipients of government transfers owe any money to the Government of Yukon and
that an organization with outstanding debts to the government should not receive funding from the
government.

45. We examined whether the government transfers in our sample included affirmations that the prospective
recipients did not owe money to the government:

+ For the Department of Community Services, we found no evidence in 8 of the 34 government transfers
in our sample that societies had affirmed that they did not owe money to the Government of Yukon.

46. Government transfers versus contracts. The 2008 Government Transfers Policy states that
departments must examine all potential funding agreements and decide whether a government transfer is
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the right funding mechanism to use, or whether another vehicle, such as a goods and services contract,
would be more appropriate. According to the policy, if the government is acquiring goods, services, or an
asset directly in return for resources, the agreement must be classified as a goods and services contract.
The 2008 policy also states that the use of contracts may sometimes be necessary if the government
acquires goods or services as a by-product of the agreement.

47. We found that in 8 of the 53 government transfers sampled—5 from the Department of Community
Services and 3 from the Department of Energy, Mines and Resources—the funding provided to societies
resulted in the government’s acquiring a direct benefit, such as goods or services. For example, one saociety
received about $5,000 to install signs and perform maintenance for pools owned by the Government of
Yukon. In our opinion, contracts rather than government transfers might have been the appropriate
mechanism.

50. “Other expense” classification. In 2011, the Mountain View Golf Club received a $750,000 payment
through an agreement from the Government of Yukon. This payment was originally classified as a
government transfer. At the end of the 2010-11 fiscal year, the payment was reclassified as an “other
expense.” Although we found that the payment was properly authorized from a financial perspective, we
could not determine which other policy requirements were met for this transaction. Departments need to
follow rules when spending public funds, so that they manage them with appropriate accountability and
control.

51. Recommendation. The Department of Community Services and the Department of Energy, Mines and
Resources should comply with policy requirements for government transfers, including verifying a society's
compliance with its legal reporting requirements, determining that a society does not have any outstanding
debts to the government, and determining when to use a government transfer instead of a goods and services
contract.

The Department of Community Services’ response. Agreed. The Department of Community Services

will better comply with policy requirements related to government transfers by

e ensuring that documentation is saved in the agreement file demonstrating the society’s
compliance with the Societies Act,

e including a statement from the society that there are no outstanding debts to the Government of
Yukon by either revising the application form for the funding programs or by adding a clause into
the transfer agreement attesting to that fact, and

» Developing guidelines that will be available to all staff by publishing on the internal website and
offering training sessions to farget groups on how to decide whether to use a government transfer
or a contract.

This work will be completed by 1 April 2017.

COMMUNITY SERVICES UPDATE:

37 Instaliments and advance payments:

Under the Financial Administration Manual, advance payments and cash management requirements for TPAs
differ between agreements that are deemed “operational funding” and “project funding”. Community Services’
SharePoint site includes information to assist officers on how to interpret the difference between operational
and project funding which will help them to determine when advance payments can be made in accordance
with the policy.
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A newly created reference/checklist document is now a mandatory requirement for all TPAs generated within
the Department. This screen shot below is part two of the “Contribution/Transfer Payment Agreement Checklist”
document which must be filled out and put on the the TPA file. (see checklist below)

The terms of payment (Schedule C) of low risk and med/high risk transfer payment templates have also been
revised to capture the requirement of substantiated funding needs; by way of cash flow reporting identified
within the FAM. See below for a screen shot of the new initial advance and subsequent payment working.

Transfer Payment Agreements - Budgets and Cashflows

Need some help understanding how to incorparate Budgets and Cashflow into your Transfer Payment Agreement??

The chart below wi? 233t31 with feterminang «f your TPA 1t operateanal of project based and then how you should tayut your payment terms (Schedw'e C within the Transfer Payment Agreement;

OPERATIOMAL PUNTING

PROECT FUNDBG
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See balow for mare information on how the budget and cash llow shouid look and include within the Transfer Payment Agreement
Low and Schedule C Med/High Risk
Schedule Terms of Payment C template
C1.0 Funds

C1.1 First payment to the recipient upon signature of the Agreement supported by a projected
cash flaw from the recipient as outlined in Schedule B (B1.1 2) substantiating need for the
funding and a written statement that there are no monies owed to Yukon Government

C12 Intenm payrnent to the recipient upon receipt of intenm report and deliverables as
outlined in,

1. Section 6.0 Financial Accountability Reporting
2 Section 8 0 Project Reporting

3 Schedule B (B1.1 2 &B1.1.3) Cash Flow; substantiating need for further payment

Insert if high risk TPA / remove if medium risk

C13 Final payment to the recipient; whichever is lessor, minus amounts paid in C1.1 and
C1 2 on recigient of all final reports as outlined in;

1. Section 6.0 Fmancial Accountability Reporting, substantiating all payments
2 Section 8 0 Project Reporting
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Contribution/Transfer Payment Checklist Document / Payment Schedules

CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
CHECKLIST {Mandate and Risk Assessment)

Yakon

PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND CASH FLOW REQUIREMENTS {ma

NOaMncepaymeﬂfnexcessofsw.oaashaﬂbemadeeoarmblemhoneﬁmfyurwbenmemla!edexpendim:o!m recipient are
not liely to be incurmed uniil the following fiscal year. Advances required for the expendRures that are to be Incurred in the folowing fiscal
year must be Issued as of April 1 and charged fo an appropriation in the new fiscal year.

Whmdwwmmmuammmumm if an organization has
beparate programs, depariments or divislons, suppot fora particuler program I8 aise considered to be operational funding.

Nota: Operational funding must be paid In instaliments corresponding o the estimated cash flow requirements of the recipient The
minimum number of instaliment payments is determined according to the Lolal value of the operationat funding and risk matrix
it is encouraged to Include a holdback on all TPA's which fall Into the hlgh rhk utngory

Creer | Total Value of Annual Minimum Number of

ored | Funding Paymants .
[:I Up lo $75,000 | Atleast One Payment Payment made upon signature of TPA and required documents listed In TPA

Interim payments not to exceed 90% of

Inlthl Mvan:. Subssquent Advances/Payments

[0 |$75.001105150000 | Atleast Two Payments | Estimated cash fiow s‘“ O i Noencl
requirements of the recipient i A A Tl previous
Proponent fo provide an advances) required
e | :uwmm: Final payment {0 be payeble upon

submission of final repart {High Risk TPA)

] | Over$150,000 Al least Four Payments

Prolect Funding is support directed to & specific project which has a start and an end date.

Nota: Project funding I$ nomally paid on the basis of performance or as reimbursement of expenditures incumed, Where advance
payments are necessary, they should be §mited to the immediate cash fiow requirements of the reciplent and must not exceed the following
percentage of lotal value of the funding and risk matrix.

L 2 DURM'IDN DF AGREEI!EN’T
Total val — an 4 months T —]
et G?F"MI:; | Lass than 4 months {Project Phasa) ___4months nrlmprﬂ'mp-;t?hml:
indtial Advance mm I Initial Advanu Subssqueni Advances/Payments
Upto o Balance payable upon r;c-elpl and
O |sio0 [Uptotoox e Up o 90% acceptance of final repor
10,001 to Up to 75%
O eyt . Every 4 months based on estimated
cash flow requirement for the
l Estimated cash flow mw Ll LS
| requirement for the first 4 | - interim payments not to exceed |
Balance payable upon mo” 'nth.s 90% of funding spproved and
receipt an acceptance - payment amount is based hfen‘mﬁnand:!m.:,mn:gof i
on amount of estimated Reacas oapeves !
E |5 1 o) cash flow for first 4 month advance(s) requied
$100.00 period - finel payment to be payable upon
| submission of final report (high risk
| i TPA}
| - paymeni emount Is based on
| amount of estimated cash flow
== — - =
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40 Verification of legal reporting requirements:

It has been a long-standing practice of Community Services to check the Corporate Registry System prior to
entering into an agreement with recipients; however this was done visually and documentation wasn't previously
included in the agreement file. As of April 15t 2017, it is now a requirement to save a copy of the certificate from
the Yukon Corporate Online Registry (YCOR) showing the society is in compliance with the Societies Act in the
file. (See example of the instructions from the Sharepoint site)

Yirkon

e e Garare

DOCUMENTS TO UPLOAD IN FRONTEND FINANCIAL SYSTEM

TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT

Signed Section 24

jurisdiction)

TPA Mandate and Risk Assessment (signed)

Fina! working copy of TPA agreement (Long Form, Short Form with Schedules)
Weork plan if added as an appendix to the TPA

Budget if added as an appendix to the TPA

Any other supporting documentation which is referenced in the TPA

YCOR - if Yukon Business, or proof of business status if cut of territory (Federally or within their own

Signad complete TPA {entire packags nct just the signed page)

AMERDMENT/ADDENDUM

Signed Secton 24

jurisdictian)

Documented communication (between recipiant and YG) of need for amendment/addendum
Final warking copy of Amendment TPA agreement

YCOR - if Yukon Busineas, or proof of business status if out of territory (Federally or within their own

* Signed complete Amendment TPA {entira package not just the signed page)

44 Outstanding debt:

Community Services has modified the TPA templates to include a clause which the recipient must provide
written documentation {email) to CS identifying if they owe money to YG before they receive first payment. This
also includes funding program agreements the sport and recreation agreements for Yukon Recreation Advisory
Council (YRAC) funding, High Performance (HP) funding and Yukon Sport for Life (YS4L) funding.

As of January 2017 Community Services has required all officers to contact in writing the Department of Finance
{(Manager, Accounts Receivable) to confirm debt owed of recipient. This confirmation is then added to the TPA.

TPA Schedule C

Screen shot of YRAC, YS4L and HP letter/TPA from Sport and Rec identifying outstanding debt.

Government Transfers to Societies — Yukon (Department of Community Srevices Status Report June 2017)

Schedule C
Terms of Payment
C10 Funds
Ci.1 Fust payment to the recipient upon signature of the Agreement supported by a projected

cash flow from the recipient as outined in Schedule B (B1 1 2) substantiating need for the
funding and a written statement that there are no monies owed 1o Yukon Government
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The RECIPEINT agrees to use the funding provided for the specified purpose, and in accordance with the terms and conditions set out

in this Application/Agreement
a) The Recipeint hereby certifies that there are no monies currently owed to Yukon Governman! from this Organization
b) The Recipient's performance under this Application/Agreement may be used by YG in evaluating future requests for funding.

Note: Page 1 and 2 must be signed and returned to the Sport and Recreation Branch Office

SIGNATURE OF RECIPIENT OR OFFICER PRINT NAME/POSITION DATE

YUKON GOVERNMENT {Certified pussuent to section 23 (contracting authority) of the Financial Admnistration Act

Karen Thomson, Director
Py - Aw.r"‘" YG Sport and Recraation Branch (LS USR] 20!
SIGNATURE OF PUBLIC OFFICER PRINT NAMEPOSITION DATE

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

46 Government transfers versus contracts

Community Services has created a decision tree (also on the SharePoint site) to assist officers in identifying
the difference between using a transfer payment agreement or a contract. Below is a screen shot of the
information provided on the Procurement and Transfer Payment Agreement page of the site.

Community Services has held strategic procurement sessions with several branches, taking the opportunity to
educate them on some of the new changes and requirements going forward and as a result of this audit. Further
training sessions are planned throughout the 2017/18 fiscal year. The portion is only one area of a larger training
plan for the department.

Procurement and Transfer Payment SharePoint site page

TRAMSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENTS {TPA) CONTRACTS/REQUISITIONS
HELP
LUse a TRA in the following oroumstances Use 3 comtzact an the followng crcumstances
® iransler funds 10 recipeent from a furcisng prograrm wisch may be apphication based » G Wy 1of "prcht” [with
tramtter funds % recient wikch 1 generalty 4 non-prott organations in which we ate contniutng fo # YG receves the best value for moncy spent on tintoacty
expendituet end tuch contibutions is “reasonzble” # YG recenaes equat value of GOOdE/Senraces i ecunge for the maney provided even if the fransachon
= There it no dawe enchange of Goods/venvces [l coesn't recerve amytivng othet than a’token’) mary benefit the contracimsg Ird party.
= YG b contnbuting to a vertiee with “daretireley ant/opporisy g™ mxts {NOT indiwect * YO daectly recenves poous and servkes
of Coais,overhead) + quote or proposal needed
* Subsdy, Incentive, contt:bution 10 a capital proyect, somethang “speaal” that YG wants 1a see hagpen for » vorong by the contracting party can be assurmed to include a profit margir for the entity
the benefit of Yukon
+ Capacity Non-proht has 113 Gwh capacity 1o manage the propect and wadf not contract out & “sgodcant” Exarmples of Comtracte:
part o the project 10 a 3nd party “w i b Tangbike Goods 1ot ¥G, Studies or Reports, Project Management, Adveriming. Products whech deplay YG logo
Exampics of TPA: Conizacting Tools Aquesiton Card. Conviengnce Contrct. Local Purthase Order, Contract Requistion
$porming Games Funding, Fundng Programs (Gas Tax. Yukon Recreaton Assistance Grant, Operationsl
Funcing (Community Librinet Funding. Recyeing Depet fundmg) TIPS § SPEC WRITING

50: "Other expense” classification

Contracts and Transfers payments agreements are the two most common vehicles for flowing expenditures.
On rare occasions, there are transactions that don't neatly fit into either definition. The Mountain View Golif
Course transaction is one of the rare exceptions. Community Services required the land for future bioswale
and the potential for an additional 200 lots for development and sale. Department of Energy Mines and
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Resources (EMR) determines the prices and land tenure. This transaction and agreement was reviewed and
approved by legal services and all signing authorities were complied with.

This transaction was picked up in this audit because a clerical error had been made originally coding the
transaction to a TPA code looking at the format of the agreement rather than the substance of it. The coding
error was later corrected in the year.

DEPARTMENTS DID NOT CONSISTENTLY USE A RISK-BASED APPROACH IN MANAGING
GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS

OFFICE OF AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT:

What we found

52. We found that a risk-based approach was not always used in managing government transfers.

53. Our analysis supporting this finding presents what we examined and discusses

* Risk assessment.

57. Risk assessment. The 2008 Government Transfers Policy states that departments must use a risk-based
approach to managing government transfer requests. Risk assessments should measure the risks associated
with a particular project or funding proposal. They also determine the capacity of the recipient to fulfilt the
requirements of the agreement. Completed and documented assessments of both project and capacity risks
are intended to help determine the nature and extent of a funding agreement's terms and conditions, and to
help determine the level of monitoring needed throughout the funding period.

58. Most of the government transfers we examined had not had assessments carried out for both project and

capacity risks. We found that across the three departments, 32 of the 53 government transfers (60 percent) had

no documented risk assessments:

+ The Department of Community Services had no documented risk assessment for 21 of 34 government
transfers (62 percent). The 21 transfers without a documented risk assessment had a total value of about
$2 million in approved funds. For the 13 risk assessments conducted, we found that all 13 were assigned a
low risk level.

62. Recommendation. The Department of Community Services, the Department of Economic Development,
and the Department of Energy, Mines and Resources should consistently use a risk-based approach in their
assessments of all funding requests. The departments should adequately document both project and capacity
risk for government transfers and include funding agreement provisions, monitoring requirements, and other
elements that reflect the level of risk identified.

The Department of Community Services’ response. Agreed. When considering a funding agreement,
the Department of Community Services will more methodically apply a risk-based approach that is
consistent with the 2008 Government Transfers Policy in the Financial Administration Manual.
Specifically, the Department of Community Services will implement a risk assessment with an overall
score for both project risk and recipient risk. Scores of low, medium, or high risk will be reflected in the
terms and conditions of the agreement to ensure that issues of risk are identified, and that deliverables
are monitored as the project unfolds. This documentation will be saved in each agreement file and will
be implemented by 1 April 2017.
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COMMUNITY SERVICES UPDATE:

The newly created TPA checklist also includes a risk assessment matrix. It forces program officers to document
the assessed risk for both funding levels: amount; complexity; sensitivity as perceived by the public and recipient
capacity: credibility and track record; size, capacity and sophistication; community support; skills, experience
and expertise in achieving goals; project management skills; accounting and record keeping skills and any
foreseeable constraints. Once the risk matrix is completed, it leads the officer to which TPA template to use
(low risk or med/high risk). Again, this form must be included in the TPA file. This form is available on the
SharePoint site in a PDF fillable format. This document is filled out by the officer and then signed by two public
officers (officer and their supervisor).

The med/high risk TPA template will be designed to commensurate, mitigate and address the identified risks.

Documentation of Risk Assessment / Decision making

PART A - FUNDING PART B —RECIPIENT CAPACITY ey
Risk Seraitdty | Crombmy Stea, T e Epetance. T oy Jazunirg No evenis could D EACH
toveNe | Memey | o rids Cinmts Cormmunity Experine for and Record : ¥
— SR | ot | s | St g ol merepE Tt | pers chjectvea Row
Low 0
Mt 0
High 0
Low = 1 point percheck mark  Mad = 5 poinis per checkmark  High = 10 points per check mark TOTAL POINTS
10-15 poinis = LOW RISK  18-50 Points = MEDIUM RISK  51-100 points= HIGH RISK _ weny | O
PART C ~ ASSESSMENT RESULT BASED ON PART A+B 5
| Low Risk i
| : Low risk - Low risk funding agreements would entall standard terms .
0 | [Short Form TPA] | 204 conditions that spply lo all agreements with minimal reporting | © 5::::“;” e
|Uptossoooo | Euimments N
Short Form -
Low risk — Low risk funding agreements would entall standard terms ¥ previo:lnsm '?Pmmr\sv&
and conditions thal apply to all agreements with minimal reporting objectives fulty met. ;
Lowioiiedern NS ] requiesnents + If annual funding amount in multl
Risk Medium risk — At this level of risk, the outputs are measurable and ar TPA Is angm $30,000 |
| the reparting requirements are almed at providing evidence thal L e Form— ’
$50,001 funds were axpended on the lasks. Certain interim terms and %3 of
$100,000 guxesrss | conditions may have to be met during the life of the project and * S TP:?I :sMemculhe years
before the final payment Is made. previous TPA's with branch
i + No previous TPA with branch
» |f annual funding amount in multi-
| year TPA is more than $30,000
| Meadium to high risk — The concems for this level of funding should be Lhe identification of the performance
measures, expecied resulis and outcomes. The programming may be more complex and perdormance
High Risk Information requirements more extenslve. In some cases, non-audited financial slatements prepared by an
0 [Long Form TPA] | independent accountant and/or audlied financial stalements of the project would be required after project
complation.
Over $100.000 | Ligh rigk — The concems at this level should be the execution of the project and its evaluation upon
completion. A high risk project and high risk recipient should be monitored closely, e.g. frequent accounting
and reporting requirements, monthly progress reports. on-site inspection by program officers, elc.
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DEPARTMENTS DID NOT FULLY IMPLEMENT A RESULTS-BASED APPROACH

OFFICE OF AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT

What we found

75. We found that the Department of Economic Development and the Department of Energy, Mines and
Resources assessed and documented whether the objectives of government transfers had been met. We found
that the Department of Community Services did not always assess and document whether the objectives of
government transfers had been met. We also found that the Executive Council Office had not developed a
corporate evaluation policy to allow departments to measure results at the program level.

76. Our analysis supporting this finding presents what we examined and discusses
» program-level resulis, and

¢ Funding-agreement-level results.

Analysis to support this finding

85. Funding-agreement-level results. The 2008 Government Transfers Policy states that the results-based
approach must also be considered at the funding-agreement level. Departments must demonstrate that resuits
of both program and single-recipient government transfers have been achieved.

87. At the Department of Community Services, we found that of the 23 government transfers for the Yukon
Recreation Advisory Committee and Yukon Sport for Life programs, 3 government transfers did not include
documentation provided by the recipient on whether the objectives were met. We also found that 11 of the 23
government transfers did not include a program officer's documented assessment of whether the project’s
objectives had been met. For 1 of these government transfers, neither the recipient nor the program officer had
documented whether the objectives had been met.

88. Of 17 government transfers made outside funding programs across all three departments, 4 did not include
evidence of review by a program officer to determine whether the project's objectives had been met. Of these
4 government transfers, which were single-recipient funding agreements, 3 were funded by the Department of
Community Services and 1 was funded by the Department of Economic Development. Without a review by a
program officer, a department does not know whether the society met the key deliverables required to achieve
the objectives of the government transfer.

80. Recommendation. The Department of Community Services should put mechanisms in place to
systematically review government transfers to determine and document whether their goals and objectives have
been met.

The Department of Community Services' response. Agreed. The Department of Community Services
will require recipients to complete a final evaluation to document whether the objectives of the program
or project have been met as part of the agreement'’s final deliverables. The Department will also require
program officers to complete a post-assessment report to confirm that the objectives of the program or
project have been met. This requirement will be in place by 1 April 2017.

COMMUNITY SERVICES UPDATE:

An accountability reporting form was created for officers to document and assess whether or not objectives
were met at the end of the agreement. To assist officers in evaluating the results, the TPA checklist includes
identifying these goals so branches can link specific mandate goal(s) to the purpose of the funding prior to
creating the agreement. The TPA templates were aiso revised to clearly identify the mandate and goals at the
outset.
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Community Services is currently analyzing the department's transfers and working on creating a systematic
review process to determine whether goals and objectives have been met. A template form will be created to
provide a consistent approach department wide and include evaluation criteria. As most agreements have a
April 1-March 31 term evaluations following the new process will be conducted in 2018.

itis Community Services’ practice to require recipients to complete a final report which is saved in the agreement
file.

Documentation of Business Plan/Mandate which will be identified in TPA

m CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
Communty Sovass CHECKLIST {(Mandate and Risk Assessment)

This chackiist must bo provided with each new TPA; a llgnod copy should be Included in the paper file of tha TPA and it should
also be uploaded in Front End

RECIPIENT / FRONT END INFORMATION

Racipiant: I Funding Amount
Torm Dates . ]
[ capeai[Josm [ overational [JProject e Datae ) | From: To:
Titia:
Financial Coding:

Subrmittad by: {Consultant):
BRANCH BUSINESS PLAN f MANDATE

Indicile vt rpas gf the brongh mantate vall be addressed! vath ths 1HA
Corporsis - mmmmammhMWAWhum Look at your mandate
and st which mandate goals the TPA will identify/address

O
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Appendix A - Community Services new Financial SharePoint Site

Link: https://yukonnect.gov.yk.calcollab/cs-c1/finance/ layouts/15/start aspx@#/SitePages/Home.aspx

Home

About O5 Firurce
Avorym ard Glostary
Finance fvents

Forrns and uirls

Inta tor kv Employee
Merng Ton & Treks

Reutrg Docsments to
ACMDM M in

Sanding Offer Agreements

&l

3 Ul Howas

CS - Corporate Finance (C-3)

Providing branches within Community Services direction, guidance and support with financial systems and operations.

Plesia nole: this SharePoint sie is tntermet Explorer supparied. The use of Chrome rmay himel your wdw ot dcCesubily 10 fesnurces vartun the uie

Comman f arms and
Templates

Eudge! Inftmibon
#nd Cyddes

Space Mo B
Ayets

[¥ a% any tima you notice & link is broken or information 15 incorrect plense tet us know so we can fix it

DUE DATES, DEADLINES AND DON T FORGET! InfoEXCHANGE | - Eeeping up wiih the lastestinformation trom C 3
B e [T ([EEY EPETOTYY Infcz«<rarge
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Appendix B - Transfer Payment Agreement Checklist

Front side:

ﬁbn CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
Sty b CHECKUIST (Mandate and Risk Assessment)

This chechlist must be provided with sach new TPA; a signed copy should be included in the paper file of the TPA and it should
also be uploaded in Front End

RECIPIENT { FRONT END INF ORMATION

SUDMG by {Consurtanty

BRANCH BUSINESS PLAH f MANDATE
Indicatn what arexs of the branch mandate wed be addressed with this TPA

Cotporats - these madsie goals should be identied specifically in the TPA hackgraundidescription for the funcing. Look 2t yeur rardate

and figt which manciate poals he TPA Wi idenéfiaddress

0

i ovarin s
inpint'y vhymlivey

i
i

Craditiy Lo
et | covwtenty | gt | e | Copostion, | Comeny | Eawi

!
|
]
ole|alo 3-5

= { it pef CPck mark Med + S poiris pac Check mars. Hgh = 10 PONES ps checa TON TOTAL POINTE
10-15 = LOW MK 16-50 POrrs = MEDRM foSK 51-100 o= MGH RISK L

Low rok — Low risk would entail stndard ey .
[Shont Form TPA) S0 thit ooy be peiinilr :Esubluhaedimhh
Upo3s0nm | eRsrment. |

hen Form -
Low rish — Low risk funcing agreements would entall standard terms | m‘“”'“"%? ""ﬂ‘mm"m:;'.
and condtions that apply to all agreements with minimal reportng chrectives fully met
Lo 10 Medum requrements. o I anewal oot in mukti-
Risk Madiom nsk - A1 s leve! of ok, he tputsare mesurabe and fundag in
] A1 e 2 2t providt that prTPAulﬂlhmmm
$30.001 - hﬂsmmﬁdmhm&xwmm“
$100.000 spamtew | concitons may have to be met during the life of he projeet and ""”“""T%m'“'

befors the final payment is made. it

+ No previces TPA with branch
| + ¥ anrwaal funcing amount in mudti-
| year TPA is mone than $30.000

M Thit concarms for this level of funding should be the identficaton of the performance
. XP !udsmd The p g may be more complex and performance

mﬁéﬁmw& k il ive, bn some cases, ron-audited francial statements prepared by an
O wmm:mmummummwdnmmm |

Do SI00 S0 M-Mmmammmuun-umdmmmumw
MAMMWMMMMMMWM [¥] Mmﬁq
Y proge reparts, on-wie indpecton by




Back side:

ﬁbﬂ CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
Compagam CHECKLIST {(Mandate and Risk Assessment)

PAYMENT SCHEDUL E AND CASH FLOW HE CLARE MENTS [runemasm requirement |
mm.-::plym.nemudllﬂ.wo:mlhmmwdanwmmnnmtmdhmn
not Skely to be incurred until the followtrg Sscal year. d for the that are fo be Incurmed in the followng fiscal
year must be issued a3 of Apri 1 and chirged © an apampriadon in the new fscal pear |
mbmmummmuammmuwm Wan organization has
mm P support for = also comahered o be oparatonal funding.
Hote: Whﬁmmhpﬁnmmwh - d cxth fow migunemints of the

the vail valee of the operatoral funding and rek matrix
Ilismnﬂdlnlmhh:hdﬁaﬁmﬂﬂﬁswhnhulmmehiﬂ\mkum

L— Iﬁ-'lml of il h,'!._v HurmGa of wwz Agvance | Subsequent AdvancesP symenti &

O | upto$75000 AxhnlOmPamm PmmWsde?AmnmeIMiﬂPA
Interan prymens nol o sxceed B60% of

0] | 5750001 03150.000 | Atieast Two Paymeess | Estemated cash flow furding approved and interim Fnancial

summary of expendiures from previous
mp th e ":Im advance{s} required
bis "’h"""'

de Firal payment to ba payable upen
subistantisting need Submistlon of fr repart (igh Risk TPA]

] | Ower3150,000 At le2st Four Payments.

|wkmmmmﬂbwmm:wmmﬁu

Hote: Projeet uncng o nonmally pad on the BIws o p R OF 23 NPT of exp noUrTE. Wihent
| PAYTENS Ay necrisary. they should be kmited o the diate cash flow requirsments of the reapent and must not extred the following
Ikl i

[ I S [T R P | Up o 9% m"dmﬁ"m. “
18,001
O :‘g&n‘“ Upto 75% Every 4 months based on estmated
bk f;ﬂhh.wm for the
E oweng
ﬂ,l:::lh‘
QU FRMant 5 nol Io exceed
empnen | e
N RhpEIncE . amount 3 based ;
of 5l report o b e eipencires fom previous
D Over Up to 5% cazh Sow br st 4 " advance(s} nequired
100,008 - final payment o ba payable upon
penge submission of final report (high risk
- payenert amount is based on
amount of ssiimated cash flow
o of A 1 - The e o Ee 27 e progEmTeTiect I 25 el 28 e FEPONING P of o6 Sgmerent.

P oject Torm - T repe i PRTEx] Of 3T WRICH 2 SIDTNE EpRaCTone IOF Tl [FUGEMTUSTICT MUY DY Jcoepted.

RopofTing Phiss - THA TephLents th e i) kS 200w It Fecpiert 0 S i i report. This grven OMe IS based on whit the prpect prograem
RN TS |5 RPEOEILTS TR (N MECAT.

CONAULTENT SIGHATURE: Dats. l :
——— S| | —
! DIRECTOR SIGMATURE Oats

lmﬂnmmawmh Az CJves Owo i

o - - DV- Dm Finance IOMes Amin Signature:

TPAR
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Office of the Auditor General
Government Transfers to Yukon Societies

STATUS REPORT
June 28, 2017

The OAG recommendations for Economic Development focused on
risk assessment and included:

» Verifying a society is compliant with its legal reporting requirements;
and

» Documenting and applying a consistent risk-based approach in
assessments of funding requests and implementation of agreements.

In response to the OAG recommendations, Economic Development
has enhanced and standardized its departmental procedures and risk
assessment process.

The following documents have been introduced across the department and
are in use by all program areas:

¢ Risk Assessment Matrix

e Transfer Payment Agreement Process Checklist (Program Areas)

o Transfer Payment Agreement Review Checklist (Finance Branch)
o Completed and kept on file with TPA's

» Transfer Payment Agreement Payment Checklist

» Transfer Payment Agreement Reference Guide
o Reference documents available to all departmental employees
and added to relevant desk manuals

Date Prepared: May 25, 2017 Page 1 of 1



Economic Development Risk Assessment Matrix

1
Project ID:
Date:
IEK VALE
LOW RISK = 1
MEDIUM fUISK = 2
FACTOR JUSTIFICATION OF RISK HIGH RISK = 3 POSSIBLE METRICS
E’"’im Wik [Dolfar Value < 50k = low risk; S50k-S100k 3 medium risk; >$100k high ritk
’Projen Rigk Compexity of Project
v ¥ dination amang o ber of partners &
stokeholders, dependent sequencing of project actlvities
[Proiect Risk RuElic Protie/Sensitivity Public or medio awareness; could the profect be controversiol:
market disruption
*NOTE - Projects scoring medipm to high muyt be referred to
Iiedplent Risk  |Credibility & Track Rezord
of Reciplent Front End Assessment; other succesful examples of project
9 t by org . abiiity to produce financial
statements, regular audits
|Reciplent Risk  [Skills, Experience and
Expartiie of Project
Management Teamn |Expertise and copabilities of staff ond other resources being
opplied to project { empioyees, consultonts et}




Reciptent Risk  |Stability of Recipient

CED changes or HA turnover, Boord Governarice issues efc

Range of marks assuming 1, 2, 3 scoring system will result In 24 posible binations and 13 ible overall matks ranging from 6-18

DiTOTAL RISK SCORE
IOVERAU. RISK CATEGORY [HIGH / MEDIUM / LOW}

5/3 HIGH, 3 MEDIUM or 4 HIGH, 1 MEDIUM, 1 LOW

Risk Assessment Completed By (print name)

14}4 HIGH, 2 LOW or 3 HIGH, 2 MEDIUM, 1 LOW ar 2 HIGH, 4 MEDIUM

1313 HIGH, 1 MEDIUM, 2 LOW or 2 HIGH, 3 MEDIUM, 1 LOW or 1 HIGH, 5 MEDIUM
MEDIUM 1213 HIGH, 3 LOW or ZHIGH, 2 MEDIUM, 2 LOW or 1 HIGH, four MEDIUM, 1 LOW
11]5 MEDIUM, 1LOW or 1 HIGH, 3 MEDIUM, 2 LOW

10{4 MEDIUM, 2 LOW or 2 HIGH, 4 LOW

93 MEDIUM, 3L0W or 1 HIGH, 1 MEDIUM, 4 LOW
B2 MEDIUM, 4 LOW or 1 HIGH, 5 LOW

7|1 MEDIUM, 5 LOW

G|6 LOW

LOW

SIGNATURE

Risk Assessment Reviewed By (print name}

RISK MITIGATION TO BE REFLECTED IN TPA SCHEDULES [increased reporting, reduced advance payment, etc.):

SIGNATURE




\ﬁl@n CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT
ey e AGREEMENT PROCESS CHECKLIST (PROGRAM AREAS)

PRIOR TO PROJECT APPLICATION/FUNDING APPROVAL

Complete application risk assessment (EcDev Risk Assessment Matrix)

Officers/Advisors must ensure compliance with applicable funding program policies

Completed matrix requires review and two signatures before project is created in EDFMS/Front End

Verify historical performance of client (via the “All Agreements’ tab in Front End)

[_]| Follow-up on agreements where objectives not met, (CDF assesses/documents on resume)

If Agreement is funding program based ensure previous EDFMS projects are complete/closed

Create project online using EDFMS* and enter in Front End System

[J| Vendor ID & Address must match in EDFMS and Front End

*If Agreement is not funding program based it doss not need to be entered into EDFMS

Ohtain project application/funding approval & get Front End commitment* (Section 24) signed based

on Resume or detailed project description

- Officars/Advisors must ensure compliance with applicable funding program policies (advance Advisory
Committee recommendations, Jury process, Ministerial approval, eic.)

*it's encouraged to get Section 24 (Commitment Authority) signed al this stage, however mos! of the time it

gels sent when routed for approvals of agreement language

FTER PROJECT APPLICATION/FUNDING APPROVED

Create Contribution Agreement
0 Funding Program TPA's are generated on departmental femplate

LOW RISK template — used for NON funding program TPA's, must be low risk and under $50K
MEDIUM-HIGH RISK template — used for all other NON funding program TPA's
SCHEDULES A/B/C reflect/mitigate project risk identified in Risk Matrix exercise and:
cAgreement budget, total value & terms of payment comply with FAM and/or funding program policies
oTerm for Advance/Initial payment requests “stalement that there are no monies owed to Yukon Government”
1| oFiscal year $ allocations for multi-year projects accurate and match EDFMS / Front End
aDetailed description provided for in-kind contributions
=All funding sources clearly identified
oReporting requirements andfor client menitoring schedule clearly defined and in-line with project deliverables
Corp.
Registries For applicable recipients, verify status via the YG Corporate Registries Search site
Search Good Standing Check = Active & In Compliance
https:iiycozt- PRINT, DATE & INITIAL CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
resy.gov.yk.ca
Send to FIM Project Analyst for review (email is quickest)
Once edils are complete agreement is ready to be routed for language approval if required or signatures

Route for approvals/signatures
QUTING PROCESS

O

]

Obtain client signature

O 0m0 O

Route for authorized Section 23 YG Signature {(same as Section 24/Commitment)

SUBMIT TO FIM, (program area keeps copies for paper/digital files):

[[] FRONT END AGREEMENT (signed)

] TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT (signed) *COF sends copy & keeps original on file in unit
[J RISK ASSESSMENT MATRIX {two signatures)

[C] CORPORATE REGISTRY CERTIFICATE (dated & initialed}

(] PROGRAM AREA CHECKLIST (completed & initialed)

(] ROUTING SLIPS

]| Send client copy of signed CA and Cash Flow template to initiate first payment

B

See Reference Guide for Delailed Information

Additional Notes:

Checklist Completed By:

Print Name

Date

G\Committees\34th Legislative Assembly\Public Accounts\Public Hearings\2017-06-28 OAG report on Government Transfers to Saciaties\E Ic Develop
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\ﬁm CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT
Esrome Devscomer AGREEMENT REVIEW CHECKLIST (FIM BRANCH)

STEMS CHECK

O (s::;;:é'?eglstrles Varify recipient status via the Yukon Government Corporate Registrias Search site
hilp:/fapp-ucr-sql *Must be Active & In Compliance*
[ Term of Agreement
*Start date is first day of project phase & end data is final day of reporting phase
[ Fiscal Yaar Appropriations
O :;o "::I‘r?:gfmisfei *$ allocations for multi-year projects are correct
pImemIs’e. | [ Check intarnal project number and departmental fund
*Listed in “Intemnal File Number” & "Funding Program” fields
O Deseription Title matches agreement “project description”
{0 Project Summary tab
=Start/end date (end date must include reporting period)
[ Eligibility/Activities tab
cProject and aclivities eligible as per fund policies
O Project Information & Assessment tabs
alnformation is complete
EDMFS [ Budget & Approved Budget tabs
*For funding cApproved items/amounts are eligible and in compliance with fund policies
] =All funding sources & in-kind contributions are clearly identified

[/;]

program cBugget tams & braakdowns add up cormectly
projects [0 Recommendations & Declsion tabs
cApprovals have correct authority
[ CA Management tab
=TPA # starting with *T" is ntered under commitment #
{1 Approved Budgat & Payments/Decommit tabs
=Fiscal year $ allocations for multi-year projects are correct
(J All other TPA's issued to reciplent from applicable fund are closed
Cross O Internal project number and funding program match
O Referance [ Fiscal year $ allocations for multl-year projects match
EDFMS & O Financlal Coding Is correct (Including subladgers)
Front End [] Vendor Nama/Address detalls match

TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT - Refer to Reference Guide for additional information...

Verify agreement drafted using correct template:
0 0O FUNDING PROGRAM [EcDev template}
O LOW RISK (YG template)
[ MEDIUM-HIGH RISK (YG templata)
Verify authorized signatory is correct in accordance with fund/signing authority policies and is properly reflected In all areas:
(1| O Front Page of TPA
O Signature Page of TPA
{ODoubla-check formatting and confirm:
cApplicable fund reflected in document header
oEDFMS and Front End project numbers included in document footer
0 oProject description correct/adequale on 1% page and Schedule A
oApplicable recipient reflected on 1 page and signature block
oApplicable conlacts lisied under ‘Notice’ section of agreement
oCheck spelling/grammar, formatting and ensure all clause numbers are sequential
O Verify SCHEDULES A/B/C reflact/mitigate projact risk identified in Risk Matrix exarcise and confirm:
oAgreement budgel, total value & terms of payment comply with FAM and/or funding program policies
oTerm for Advance/initial payment requests "statement that there are no monies owed to Yukon Government”
oFiscal year § allocations for multi-year projects match EDFMS / Front End
oFigures balance and match information in EDFMS 7 Front End
0 oDetailed description provided for in-kind contributions
oAll funding sources clearly identified
oReporting requirements in-line with project deliverables and clearly state how recipient is to report on cash/fin-
kind contributions: “The fina! report must inctude, but not be limited to: A financial statement substantiating expenditure data
associated with the project and detailing actual total costs (invoices and receipis) and other sources of funding (including in-
kind contributions) *
olf paying GST on project expenses. detail on file that the recipient is not receiving GST back FED gov't
Cross-check FUNDING PROGRAM TPA clauses against EDFMSIFront End and SCHEDULES A/BIC:
321  Upen the execution of this Agreement, YG shall provide the recipient with financial assistance for the purpose of
the Project In an amount not to exceed XX% of total actual eligible expenses up 1o a maximum contribution
of $XXX {the ‘Contribution Funds') in accordance with the terms of payment set out in Schedule B attached to this
Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreemant.
[03.1.5 Deliver to Yukon a final financial statement of its expenditures with respect to the Contribution Funds, in a form
acceptable to Yukon by March 31, 20XX, {within 60 days of the January 31, 20XX project completion date), and
O [15.1.2 Provide Yukon with deliverables and reports of the Project as outlined in Schedule C, and within the timeframes required.
Final reports must be received by March 31, 20XX, (within 60 days of the January 31, 20XX project completion date)
0121 This Agreement shall take effect upon signing by the Parties and if signed on different dates upon the later of those dates
(the ‘Effective Date’). For eligible project expenditures, the effective date shall be .
1141 The term of this Agreement shall be from Eligible Expenditures Date or Effective Date (as applicable) to March 31, 20XX and
allotted as follows:
014.1.1  Project Phase of Agreement shal! be from Eligible Expenditures Date or Effective Date (as applicable) to January 31, 20XX;
and
014.1.2 Reporling Phase of Agreement (60 days) shall be from February 1, 20XX to March 31, 20XX
COMPLETED BY: | AGREEMENT PACKAGE VERIFIED TO INCLUDE:
[0 FRONT END AGREEMENT (signed)
[ TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT (signed)
O [JRISK ASSESSMENT MATRIX (two signatures)
DATE: [J CORPORATE REGISTRY CERTIFICATE (dated & initialed)
O PROGRAM AREA CHECKLIST {completed & initialed)
[ FIM CHECKLIST {completed & initialed)
G:\Committees\34th Legisiative Assembly\Public Accountt\Public Hearings\2017-06-28 OAG report on Government Transfers to Societies\E le Devel
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Yokon CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT
e D PAYMENT PROCESS CHECKLIST (PROGRAM AREAS)

FIRST AND INTERIM PAYMENTS

[] Review “schedules” of agreement to ensure deliverables have been met

Check recipient status with Yukon Government Registries Search to ensure good standing/compliance
Good standing is defined in Registries system as: Active & In Compliance
(FIM will also verify as payment cannot be processed if recipient not in good standing)
Process “Claim Verification” document in EDFMS, print & sign (if applicable)
Create Cheque Requisition

' Note: EDFMS creates an automated cheq req / For non-fund related payments go to
http.//internal.gov. yk.ca/forms/0000/yg358_e.pdf
Create routing slip - only if signing authority exceeds Director limit (Section 29) — This does not need to |
be routed through to finance until then end for payment
To include for payment be processed (keep copies for your paper/digital files)
[[] Routing slip (if applicable)
[] Cheque Requisition
[] Copy of Schedule B and/or C of Agreement

(signed/confirmed deliverables have been met & file location of documents is listed)
[1 Copy of confirmation that recipient does not owe money to YG

'D O O] O

a

FINAL PAYMENT
Review “schedules” of agreement to ensure deliverables have been met

Check recipient status with Yukon Government Registries Search to ensure good standing/compliance
~'| (payment cannot be processed until recipient is in good standing)

Process “Claim Verification” document in EDFMS, print & S|gn (if appllcable)

: Process “Decommit Verification” document in EDFMS prlnt & sign (if appllcable)

Create Cheque Requisition

1| Note: EDFMS creates an automated cheq req / For non-fund related payments go to

http://internal.qov.yk.ca/forms/0000/yg358_e.pdf o B

O Create routing slip - only if signing authority exceeds Director limit (Section 29) — This does not need to |
be routed through to finance until the end for payment

To include for payment be processed (keep copies for your ‘paper/digital files)

[] Routing slip (if applicable)

[] Cheque Requisition

[J [ Copy of Schedule B and/or C of Agreement
(signed/confirmed deliverables have been met & file location of documents is listed)

[] Indicate on Schedule B and/or C of Agreement location of final reporting documents
hard copy file / digital file

CLOSING CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
[]i Look in QUEST to confirm payment has been processed (allow 2-4 weeks for processing)

fl:I_ Close agreement in Front End system once all payments have been processed and appear in Quest
|E] Close/Finalize agreement in EDFMS

o Wi = = S — S -

See Reference Guide for Detailed Information

G:\Committees\34th Legislative Assembly\Public Accounts\Public Hearings\2017-06-28 OAG report on Government Transfers to Societies\Economic Development
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CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT

REFERENCE GUIDE

ﬁlm For more detailed information about Transfer Payment Agreements
please refer to Section 5.9 of the Financial Administration Manual (FAM)

Transfer Payment Risk Assessment

Funding Programs TPA - refer to program policies/guidelines for specific funding parameters while also using the
departmental risk assessment form
Non Funding Program spemf' c TPA - refer to the departmental risk assessment form and additional guidelines below

Risk Assessment Guidellnes : 3

Recipient Capacity - determined by the track record of the recipient, the skills or experience for achieving the goals of the
transfer payment, size and sophistication of the applicant organization, account and record management skills of the
recipient as well as whether the organizations accounting records are regularly audited.

Assessment Risk — determined by the amount of money involved, complexity of project, and sensitivity of the project as
percelved by the public and community support for the project.

_ : Assessment Risk “Action Based On Assessment Risk )
‘Reciplent Low risk — Low risk funding agreements would entail standard terms

Capacity O Low [J Medium O High  and conditions that apply to all agreements with minimal reporting
requirements.

Medium risk — At this level of risk, the outputs are measurable and

Low to the reporting requirements are aimed at providing evidence that funds

[J High Medium ﬂied';ug? stf High Risk = were expended on the tasks. Certain interim terms and conditions
Risk 9 may have to be met during the life of the project and before the final
payment is made.
Medium to high risk — The concerns for this tevel of funding should
be the identification of the performance measures, expected results
Low to Medium  and outcomes. The programming may be more complex and
] Medium Medium Medium Risk | toHigh = performance information requirements more extensive. In some
Risk cases, non-audited financial statements prepared by an independent
accountant andfor audited financial statements of the project would
be required after project completion.
High risk — The concerns at this level should be the execution of the
Low to Lowto  project and its evaluation upon completion. A high risk project and
[ Low Low Risk Mediurn Risk Medium  high risk recipient should be monitored closely, e.g. frequent

Risk accounting and reporting requirements, monthly progress reports, on-
site inspection by program officers, etc.

Note: The Short-Form TPA < orly To be used with NON Funding Program TPA's and only if risk assessmant is Jow.
Dollar Range | Risk Assessment Profile
Up to $10,000 Generally appropriate for < 10k with minimal project or operational risks and low recipient risk (low

“inherent risk”).
For agreements with low inherent risk or appropriately mmgated project/operational and recipient risks
(low “residual risk"); and the recipient has a satisfactory history with YG, or there is a history of
| success with funding similar projectsfoperations (minimum of one cycle or either recipient or
| project/operating funding result).
For fairly snmple or familiar/proven prqectloperatton with low inherent or low residual risk;
safety/health issues are properly covered off; a reliable, consistent and well developed recipient (e.g.
appropriate capacity and controls) which as a satisfactory history with YG; and the project/operation
has full community supporl

$10,000 to $25,000

$25,000 to $50,000

Use the Long-Form Transfer Payment Agreement risks are medium to high based on the “Action

I based on Assessment Risk” presented above.

G:\Committees\34th Legistative Assembly\Public Accounts\Public Hearings\2017-06-28 OAG report on Government Transfers to Societies\Economic
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CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
REFERENCE GUIDE

For more detailed information about Transfer Payment Agreements
please refer to Section 5.9 of the Financial Administration Manual (FAM)

Recipient Status
Recipient must be Active & In Compliance

ULSDERL p DU L (must be in good standing for every payment)

Registries Search

ps:/lycor-reey.gov.yk. _ . . : ;
hitps./fycor-reey.aov. vk.ca Note: If not listed in YG registry then look at the Federal registry for status

https:/iwww.ic.qc.calapplscricc/CorporationsCanadaffdriCrpSrch.htmi
Front End L . s
e s Has the recipient consistently met all objectives for other TPA's?

Verify historical performance of recipient ; i : .
hitp:/imfefimisfe/ Are there any outstanding TPA's in relation to the same project?

Payment Schedule (follow payment schedule when creating Agreement)

All TPA's must follow the payment schedule(s) below as outlined in Section 5.9 of the FAM.

“Departments shall make transfer payments with due regard for the government’s cash management practices as well as
the recipient’s cash flow requirements. Installment payments and advance payments, if required, shall be made in
accordance with subsection 5.9.5.4 of the Guidelines. Any exception to this directive must be approved by Management

Board. “
In the case of the departmental funding programs (ETF, SIF, REDF or Film & Sound Funds) exceptions have been made
and approved by management board, Please refer to “Departmental Funding Program Payment Schedule” further below.

NO advance payment in excess of $10,000 shall be made to a recipient in one fiscal year when the related expenditures of
the recipient are not likely to be incurred until the following fiscal year. Advances required for the expenditures that are lo be
incurred in the following fiscal year must be issued as of April 1 and charged to an appropriation in the new fiscal year.

Operatignal Funding is funding directed to an organization's operations as a whole rather than to particular projects. If an
organization has separate programs, departments or divisions, support for.a particular program is also considered to be
operational funding.

Note: Operational funding must be paid in instaliments corresponding to the estimated cash flow requirements of the
recipient. The minimum number of installment payments is determined according to the total value of the operational
funding.

Total Value of Annual Minimum Number of "
Funding Payments Initial Advance Subsequent Advances/Payments
Balance payable upon receipt an
0,

Up to $75,000 Two Payment Up to 90% acceptance of final report

$75,001 to $150,000 Three Payments Interim payments not to exceed 90% of
Estimated cash flow funding approved and interim financial
requirements of the summary of expenditures from previous
recipient advance(s) required

. Proponent lo provide an

OVe SO Bl estimated cash flow Final payment to be payable upon

substantiating need submission of final report

G:\Committees\34th Legislative Assembly\Public Accounts\Public Hearings\2017-06-28 OAG report on Government Transfers to Societies\Economic
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CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT

REFERENCE GUIDE

For more detailed information about Transfer Payment Agreements
please refer to Section 5.9 of the Financial Administration Manual (FAM)

Prolect Funding is support directed to a specific project which has'a start and an end date.

| Note: Project funding is normally paid on the basis of performance or as reimbursement of expenditures incurred. Where
advance payments are necessary, they should be limited to the immediate cash flow requirements of the recipient and must

not exceed the following percentage of total value of the funding.

¥ DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Total Value |
| Less than 4 months (Project Phase) 4 months or longer {Project Phase)
of Annual f SiE i ST ;
Fundin . ubsequen . ubsequen
9 | Initial Advance | 5. o e /Payments Initial Advance Advances/Payments
Up to Up to 90% Up to 50% Balance payable upon receipt
$10,000 P ° | an acceptance of final report
[ Every 4 months based on
$10,001 to Up to 75% estimated cash flow
$100,000 requirement for the following 4
— . Estimated cash flow ‘r\l;;nths.
| . es"
Balance pgyable :ﬁg::ll:‘esment fontheifistd - interim payments not to exceed
upon receipt an Notes: 90% of funding approved and
' acceptance of final | . intarim financial summary of
- payment arnount is based on . .
| report amoun{ of estimated cash flow :;‘z gzgret;:r)es f“”." grawous
| for first 4 month period b
Qver Up to 50% B i e £y - final payment to be payable
$100,001 A upon submission of final report

Community Development Fund (COF)

esiimated expenses for first 4
morniths

Departmental Funding Program Fayment Schedule

(REDR)

s

'Regional Economic
Bevelopment Fund

I Development Fund
i (SIDF).

Strategic Industries

- payment amount is based on

amount of estimated cash flow
- proponsnt must provide a
monthly breakdown of estimated
expenses for following 4 month
period

Entarpﬂse Trade Fund
- (ETF}
(Shared Between Bid And F&SC)

Advance: Applicants may request an

advance up to 50% of the amount
| approved for funding

Interim: Payments are based on receipt
of interim report; interim payments
cannot exceed 90% of approved funding
Holdback/Final: Holdback of 10% of
approved funding amount until final
report and been received and verified

Advance: Upon receipt of a request in writing, supported by a project cash flow
from the project proponents, an advance payment of up to 50% of approved
funding may be provided.
Interim: Project proponents may request interim payments upon written
demonstration of work and third-party costs to date which together with
advance payment total no more than 80% of approved funding
Holdback/Final: Holdback of 20% of approved funding amount until final

i \Fulonilfllm a7 Yukon i Yukonrﬁilm i Yukon}Sounleecordlngl YukonFilm | Yukon Filin
Beve menb Eilmmaliers " Locatlon.lncentiven \Funﬂr{vsaﬁ) .IProduction Tlraininglltundi
'Fund (vFoR) FundF(YﬁF}r Fund (YFLIF) ‘Fund (vmn (YFTF).
Advance/interim: will be pald in | Advance: none Advance: up to 50% of Advancellnterim: will be paid
accordance with a payment Interim/Final: | approved project funding in accordance with a payment
schedule developed with the | reimbursement based | Interim: an additional 25% of | schedule developed with the

applicant and based on the terms
of the applicant’s broadcast
development agreement. Not to
exceed 75% of approved funding
Holdback/Final: 25% paid upon
receipt of the final report

i on expenses incurred

Letter based transfer
agreement on file
from Minister,

the approved funding if
requested

Holdback: remaining 25%-
50% paid upon final report.

| Holdback/Final: 25% paid
' upon receipt of the final report

applicant and based on the
terms of the applicant's
broadcast development
agreement. Not to exceed
75% of approved funding
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CONTRIBUTION/TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT
REFERENCE GUIDE

For more detailed information about Transfer Payment Agreements
please refer to Section 5.9 of the Financial Administration Manual (FAM,

Approval & Signing Authorities

; . : Senior Unit -
Unit | Fund Officer Advisor Advisor Manager Director ADM DM Minister
% 10 20 CDF
| General TPA 0 25 MEDIA 25 50 500 No Limit

r Section 24 — (Front End Commitment Sheet)

Currently presented with DRAFT TPA for approvalISigﬁéiu}e
As per signing limits above

| TPA Language Approval

—

L Section 23 (Signature on TPA)

Finance Branch should review all TPA's for language aEpmvaI /no
| signing required

As per signing limits above

REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVLEPMENT BUSINESS AND INDUSRY
FINANCE 0 REGIONAL ECONO RA DUSTR RPRISE TRAL
63 REVIEW D 0P D D DP D D OP D g i
D D D
Resume Approval nfa Up to 25K Director of
Up to 20K Up to 10K Dlrecml" of Business & Industry Up to 10k Director of
Minister of EcDev G I BT Business & Industry
Over 20K Development 25k to 100K ACM or DM Development
Minister of EcDev & ¢ | 10K to SOK DMor Aol e, S 10K to 50K DM or ADM
A ADM Minister of EcDEv, CS OR
Based on Advisory Based on Assessment
, Based on Assessment EMR .
committee \ . Committee
, Committee Based on Advisory ]
recornmendations ., . recommendations
recommendations committee
recommendations
Section 24 {Front End Reviews all Up to 25K Director of
: s with
el iR SO Up to 10K Advisor Up to 10K Director of Business & Industry .
the . Up to 10k Director of
exception Up to 20K Manager Regional Economic Development Business & Indust
P —— of Up to 25K Director Development 25k to 100K ADM or DM el i/
s anytiing Up to 50K ADM 10K to 50K DM or Over 100K to 500K 10K t0 50K SM o ADM
under 25K Up to 500k DM ADM Minister of EcDEv, CS OR
from BID LA
Section 23 (TPA signature) nfa
MEDIA DEVELOPMENT
O O 0 0 0 D O O
FINANCE
STEP REVIEW D .c ! '- OCATIO ORD \ 0 n. .l D
D
Resume n/a Up to 25K— Up to 25K — Up to 25K -
Approval i I Media
Section 2 Revi I LCEL) Upto 8K~ Media Development
Seiwes ewew: G Development P Development Up to 25K - P Up to 25K — Media
{Front End CA's with ADM or h Manager
c ; h Manager Minister of Manager Media Over 25K - Development
S:: il Ll . Over 25K - ADM Economic Over 25K - Development ADM or Manager
eet) e:ceptu:‘n or Minister of Develooment ADM or Manager Minister of {3K max for
CA Language o :“Vt ing Econamic (8K m:x fo Minister of {5K max for Economic program)
approval under 25K Development rogram) Economic program) Develdnenent
Section 23 (CA | n/a (45K max for prog| Development (500K P ;
signature) program) pmgT:r:) U
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Report to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts: The Response from the
Department of Energy, Mines and Resources to the Report of the Auditor General
of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly — 2017 Government Transfer to
Societies - Yukon

June 5, 2017

Prepared by EMR Corporate Services Branch



INTRODUCTION

The Department of Energy, Mines and Resources (EMR) participated in the recent
audit of government transfers prepared by the Auditor General of Canada (OAG).
The Report of the Auditor General of Canada to the Yukon Legislative Assembly —
2017 Government Transfer to Societies — Yukon provides recommendations and
information to the department to improve the management of government
transfers.

This report addresses OAG recommendations directed towards the department as
well as areas that may impact EMR but are not specific recommendations
directed to the department. The contents are organized such that the general
topic is followed by a text box which contains portions of the audit report.
Following this, are the department actions or activities that address that topic.

The draft report from the OAG was available to departments in October of 2016.
The final report was officially released on March 6, 2017. The department was
able to act on all of the recommendations by the time the final report was
released. As a result, this document is not a plan of action but a summary of the
current state given that the activities around improving processes have already
taken place.



Core versus Operational Funding

Audit Report Findings:

20. The policies for managing government transfer payments contained
contradictions and undefined concepts.

27. In addition, we found a contradiction in the 1998 NGO Funding Policy
regarding core funding and operational funding. The policy states that
departments are not permitted to provide core funding to non-governmental
organizations, which include societies registered under the Societies Act.
However, the same policy states that the government may provide funding to
these organizations for general or operational purposes. In our opinion, these
two statements are contradictory, because core funding and operational
funding can be used to support similar services and functions, such as paying
the salaries of a society’s employees. Furthermore, this policy does not define
the term “core funding.” Officials in two departments told us that they
considered the terms “core funding” and “operational funding” to be
synonymous, even though core funding is not permitted.

28. We found that departments approved both core and operational funding
to societies, even though only operational funding was allowed. We found 2
instances of funding — totaling $140k that were categorized as providing core
funding. One transfer was through CS and other was EMR. We also found that
CS categorized 16 instances of funding to societies as operational.

These 2 policies are to be reviewed by ECO and Finance and clarity around the
conflicting policies will be incorporated into the creation of future Agreements by
EMR when available. EMR will continue to follow the newer 2008 Government
Transfers Policy on this issue.

EMR has ensured the wording of current and any future agreements does not
reference core funding in order to be in compliance with both the General
Administration Manual and Financial Administration Manual policies.



EMR Finance staff reviewed Agreements that may reference “core funding’
including those analyzed by the Auditor and advised program areas to change the
wording. The wording has been corrected.

Legal Reporting Requirements, Outstanding Debts, Transfers versus Contracts.

Audit Report Findings:

51. Recommendation. The Department of Community Services and the
Department of Energy, Mines and Resources should comply with policy
requirements for government transfers, including verifying a society’s compliance
with its legal reporting requirements, determining that a society does not have
any outstanding debts to the government, and determining when to use a
government transfer instead of a goods and services contract.

The Department of EMR response:

Agreed. EMR will comply with policy requirements related to government
transfers. EMR will start working within the next few months and will request
that when a government transfer agreement is created in the commitment
system, it is saved with documentation showing that the society is in compliance
with legal reporting requirements and that it does not owe outstanding debts to
the Government of Yukon. EMR will also review the process on how to decide
whether to use a government transfer or contract. This work will be completed
by 1 April 2017.

Legal Reporting Requirements

The Agreements considered in the audit were multi-year, meaning they went over
more than one fiscal year. The agreements did have verification with the Registrar
for the initial year when the agreement was signed but did not have further
verification in each of the fiscal years’ that the agreement was active.

EMR now requires that multi-year agreements have a verification from the
Registrar of Societies for each fiscal year of the Agreement.

4



EMR Finance staff will not process any payments for an Agreement unless a
verification is on file,

Outstanding Debts

The Auditor found that all of the samples from EMR were in compliance (Audit
Report, page 10) EMR requires that all Transfer Payment Agreements have a
standard clause indicating they must identify any outstanding debts to Yukon
government:

The Recipient warrants that it has declared all amounts owing to YG and
that the Recipient is not in default of any payment schedule in respect of the
amounts owing to YG.

In addition, program area staff have the option of checking with the Department
of Finance to see if the recipient has any outstanding debt. This would be done on
a case-by-case basis if warranted by the risk profile for the Agreement.

Government Transfer instead of a goods and services contract

Review of draft Agreements now includes examining if the work described is best
handled by a contract. Additional training was provided to staff to provide clarity
on this issue, Briefings were held for those involved in this work and the
differences and use of contracts vs. TPAs was discussed. EMR finance staff also
review Agreements and identify to the program area those that may be best
served through a contract.



Risk Assessment

Audit Report Findings:

62. Recommendation. The Department of Community Services, the
Department of Economic Development, and the Department of Energy, Mines
and Resources should consistently use a risk-based approach in their
assessments of all funding requests. The departments should adequately
document both project and capacity risk for government transfers and include
funding agreement provisions, monitoring requirements, and other elements
that reflect the level of risk identified.

The Department of EMR response:

Agreed. In it assessments of all funding requests, EMR will more methodically
apply a risk-based approach and require documentation when implementing
government transfers. EMR will work with Finance to create and provide a
government transfer agreement checklist and a risk assessment worksheet for
staff to use, will make these new forms available on the internal website, and
will present a short information session as a refresher for various levels of
staff, Work is being done on this, effective immediately. This work will be
completed by 1 April 2017.

EMR Finance has added the risk assessment worksheet (Appendix A) as part of
the process for developing a Transfer Payment Agreement (TPA). Relevant staff
have been trained on the use of the document. The document must be included
with the TPA document in the financial commitment system and signed by two
EMR senior staff in order for any Agreements to take effect.

Exceptions are the funding programs Yukon Mineral Exploration Program and
Growing Forward 2 which have risk assessments included in the funding proposal
review process. The proposals are reviewed by a group and rated/ranked before
any funding is agreed to.



Summary

In response to the audit report, EMR has introduced specific, targeted actions to
improve the handling of government transfers. Appendix B shows a revised
checklist that can assist program staff in completing a Transfer Payment
Agreement. Several of the items on the checklist are new and are a result of this
audit. In addition, EMR Finance staff will be doing occasional spot-audits of
Agreements in order to monitor compliance.



: Risk Form
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APPENDIX B: EMR TPA Check List

Transfer Payment Agreement Checklist A - Comprehensive Documentation file
Organizational Name Transfer Payment #

Project Name:

Yes No

1|Basic contact information {ensure entered correctly in f/e)

2|Corporate structure {what type of recipeint - FN/NGO etc)

3|Board of Directors and key employees (points of contact when any follow up has to
be done)

I

Copies of latast financial statements, including budgets {may need to show for
other sources of funding)

5|Latest Society filing (needs to be saved as pant of f/e paperwork to show in
compliance with reporting requirements)

o))

Mission statement/website info/media

)

Organizational Chart - optional

Transfer payment original - or sighed copy signed by both parties

1)

Confirm this is not a new program or that the TPA is in excess of three years FAM 5.9.2.5

10|If the risk indicates high, attach a copy of the review by Department of Justice FAM 59.5.2 and
FAM 5.9.5.4

11 |If your TPA is with a FN - attach a copy of the review by Aboriginal Affairs GAM 1.12

12|if your TPA is with another level of government attach a copy of the review by
Justice

13|Transfer payment schedules

14|Are your report deliverables {Schedule A) aligned with the installment and advance

schedule?
15]If this TPA is an operating TPA- are you using the right table in FAM? FAM 58.1 (h) and (i)
Based on total value of funding
16))f this TPA is a project-based TPA - are you using the right table in FAM? FAM 59.1 (h) and (i)

Based on performance or reimbursement

17|Transfer payment amendments (both to the TPA and for f/e)

18|Has your client complied with all the requirements in Schedule A and Section 6 of
the TPA prior to payments and advances?

19]|Have you reviewed Schedule B to see if dollar amounts need to reallocated within
the Budget?

20}Are your payments in line with Schedule C of the agreement?

21|If the project has been overfunded have you collected the money? FAM59.568B

22|Front End documentation {EMR Finance needs copies of all paperwork saved in
f/a)

23|Risk analysis - worksheet to be done (signed copy to EMR Finance with TPA) and
attached in f/e

241Debt off-set - usually handled as part of the TPA in one of the clauses - remind
recipient they need to be aware if they owe, funds cannot be released.

25|Communication-all emaits and other correspondence should be saved on the file

26|Reports of any YG monitoring results or auditing {all financial reports provided by
reciplent)

27|Cheque requisitions - copies to show payments

28|Coples of invoices for costs, if required, or financial reports

29|Interim reporting
30|Final reporting - both financial and progress to match deliverables in TPA

31[Notes for next year/recommendations

Programy/Project Officer {signature) Date:
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Government
Memorandum
TO: Public Accounts Committee

FROM: Katherine White, Deputy Minister, Department of Finance
Jim Connell, Deputy Minister, Executive Councii Office

DATE: June 12, 2017

RE: Status update and workplan for Report of the Auditor General of Canada to
the Yukon Legislative Assembly - 2017: Government Transfers to Societies -
Yukon

In its March 2017 report noted above (the Report), the Office of the Auditor General (OAG)
made two recommendations for which the Department of Finance (Finance) and the Executive
Council Office (ECO) are responsible. These were recommendations 31 and 84. Following is a
status report and work plan in relation to these recommendations.

Recommendation 31

The OAG recommended that Finance and ECO should work together - and consult with other
departments, as necessary - to review the 1998 NGO Funding Policy in the General
Administration Manual (GAM Policy 1.16) and the 2008 Government Transfers Policy in the
Financial Administration Manuai (FAM 5.9) to resolve contradictions in the policies and define
key policy concepts.

Work to date and next steps:

As per the response of Finance and ECO to this recommendation as set out in the Report,
Finance and ECO have undertaken a detailed comparison between the two policies and have
completed the initial scoping of the possible changes required to resolve contradictions.

Officials have agreed that the approach will be that the 2008 Government Transfers Policy will
govemn all government transfers including those to NGOs. As a result they will recommend to
Cabinet that GAM Policy 1.16 be revoked in its entirety and ECO will lead the work necessary
to do this by the fall of 2017.
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Finance will simultaneously conduct work required to define the key policy concepts that were
identified in the Report (related to such things as types of funding, clarification of terminology)
for approval by Management Board and revision of the 2008 Government Transfers Policy by
the fall of 2017.

Recommendation 84

The OAG recommended that ECO create, in consultation with departments, an evaluation policy
that will support a results-based approach to managing government transfers, so that departments
can measure, account for, and report on expected results.

Work to date and next steps:

As per the response of Finance and ECO to this recommendation as set out in the Report,
following consultation with departments, officials have determined that an evaluation policy for
govemment transfers should reside in Finance. It is expected that the policy for recommendation
to Management Board would be completed by November 2018. The policy will provide
departments with guidance to evaluate government transfers to measure, account for and report
on expected results.

Initial funding to establish an evaluation function in Finance was included in the 2017-18 Main
Estimates to support evaluation of government programs generally to determine whether
programs are achieving their objectives.

Other

The Policy and Compliance group in Finance will continue to monitor progress on implementing
recommendations contained in the Report through the Accounts Payable Post Audit and Transfer
Payment Spot Check programs. As the Finance reorganization is implemented, the Policy and
Compliance group will also be increasing outreach efforts to departments to help increase
understanding of and compliance with relevant policies including the Government Transfers
Policy and the evaluation policy.

= EI[E[ L= v

Katherine White

g(Connell
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Work Plan io Address Recommendations #31 and #84 in the 2017 OAG Report on Government Transfers to Societies

Objective Actions Responsibility | Completion | Outcome
Date
Recommendation 31: Review OAG specific comments on Finance/ECQ | April 2017 Finance and ECO officials
Review the 1998 NGO GAM 1.16 and FAM 5.9. agreed to recommend
Funding policy in GAM 1.16 . . revocation of GAM 1.16 and
and the 2008 Government Compa{e t'he two policies and identify clarify FAM 5.9 in relation to
Transfer Policy FAM 5910 | contradictions. key policy concepts such as
resolve contradictions in the Identify key policy concepts requiring types of funding and
policies and define key policy | 4afinition. terminology.
concepts.
Initial scoping of possible changes to
key concepts.
Determine approach to resolving the
contradictions between the policies.
Develop a submission to Cabinet ECO Fall 2017 GAM 1.16 is revoked resolving
tecommending revocation of the GAM the contradictions with FAM
1.16. 5.9
Policy development to address key Finance Fall 2017 Revised FAM 5.9 that defincs
concepts that were identified in the key concepls.
OAG Report (related to such things as
types of funding, clarification of
terminology).
Submit a proposal to Management
Board sceking approval for changes lo
June 12, 2017 1




Work Plan to Address Recommendations #31 and #84 in the 2017 OAG Report on Government Transfers to Societies

Recommendation 84;
Create an evaluation policy
that will support a results-
based approach to managing
govemment transfers and
determine where the
evaluation policy should
reside.

FAM 5.9,

Consultation between ECO and other ECO/Finance | May 2017 Finance and ECO Officials

departments on where the evaluation determined that the function of

function should reside. evaluating Government
Transfers should reside with
Finance and that the evaluation
policy related to government
transfers should be developed
as a section within the FAM
5.9 Government Transfers
policy.

Research federal government transfer Finance Winter 2017 | Draft language related to the

payment evaluation polices, through evaluation of government

. . Sumtmner transfers developed for

Review Report rccommenda.uons a'tfd 2018 inclusion in FAM 5.9.

findings related to Community Services,

Economic Development and Energy,

Mines and Resources evaluation of

transfer payments.

Drafi evaluation policy concepts in

consultation with other departments.

Submit a proposal to Management Finance Fall 2018 FAM 5.9 policy on

Board seeking approval of the new Government Transfers is

policy. updated to support a results-
based approach to managing

government transfers. The

June 12, 2017
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Work Plan to Address Recommendations #31 and #84 in the 2017 OAG Report on Government Transfers to Societies

policy will require evaluations |
of Government Transfers and
provide departments with
guidance for cvaluating
government transfers to
measure, account for and report

June 12, 2017

on expected results.
Implementation and training. Finance Fall/Winter | Supporting malerials
2018/2019 developed and training
delivered to assist departments

to measure, account for and
report on expected results.




Memorandum

TO: Public Accounts Commmittee

FROM: Jim Connell, Deputy Minister, Executive Council Office

DATE: Augusi 3, 2017

RE: Copies of Government of Yukon Internal Audit on Centributions Report
(2007) and the related Phase 2 Follow-up Report on Cotributions Audit
(2010)

A capy of the Audit on Contributions Report (2007) and the related Phase 2 Follow-up Report on
Contributions Audit (2010) prepared by Yukon government’s Government Internal Audit Services
branch (GIAS) is attached to this memo. Both of these reports are available on the Government
Internal Audit Services tab of the Executive Council Office website.

In our presentation to the Public Accounts Committee at the June 28, 2017 hearing on the Office
of the Auditor General of Canada’s 2017 audit “Government Transfers to Societies — Yukon” we
referred to the 2007 internal audit on contributions and noted that as of the 2010 follow-up report,
Yukon governmen! departments had addressed 50 of the 59 rccommendations made in the 2007
audit on contributions.

As of 2010, the recommendations that were either outstanding or partially completed included:
1.5, 2.1, 2.4, 3.2, 3.7, 3.8, 3.9, 4.10 and 5.2. Since 2010, significant progress has been made
towards addressing these recommendations, which are now either complete or nearly complete.

Audit recommendation 1.5 rclating to evaluating contribution programs, 2.1 relating to retiring the
Non-Governmental Organization Funding Policy and 4.10 relating to improving assessing,
tracking and reporting on results, will be further addressed by the actions Yukon government has
committed to since the 2017 audit “Government Transfers to Societics — Yukon.”

Sincerely,
Monnell

Enclosure: Government of Yukon Internal Audit on Contributions Report (2007); Phase 2
Follow-up Report on Contributions Audit (2010)







